From; Barry Weiner barryw|ianianail can
Subject. HEARING DATES-RENUMBERING OF CHARGES
Date' Oct 31, 2023 at 3:28:26 PM

To: christopher jackson ckeb liyshoo com Brian Renfroe
RENFROE@nalc.org

Cc: Paul Barner Barnat@nale org Secular, Keith ==culari@nale aryg, Peter D.
DeChiara pdechiaraicwsny com Brian Hellman bhell?9938@ a0l com.

Mrs Warren mrswarren7 2@amall.com

Brothers Jackson and Renfra,
This is to inform you that hearings before this panel on the Article 10 charges will be

conducted on Wednesday December 13 through Friday December 15 at the NALC
Headquarters building beginning at 9:0¢ AM an Wednesday. Information on the
location in the building will follaw.

In order to avoid confusian, for the purpose of the Article 10 hearings, we have
renumbered the charges at issue as helow.

Charge 1 Neglect of Duty:

this charge relates to President Renfro taking leave during contract negotiations

Charge 2 :Circulating False or Misleading Statements about an NALC Officer:

this charge relates to allegation that President Renfro did so about NALC Vice
President James Henry

Charge 3 Conduct. Impaired driving after hours in a NALC owned vehicle:

this charge relates to President Renfro being arrested and subsequently charged
with D,U.I. on 8/12/2018

Charge 4 Abandoned Position and Dereliction/Neglect of duty

this charge relates to President Ranfro not attending " Region Rap Sessions" at
Regions 1,11 and 14 in 2023s




We will proceed with each charge separately and sequentially in that order.

Barry Weiner Committee Chair Myra
Warren Committee Member Brian
Hellman Committes Member




DATE: August 29, 2023
TO: NALC EXECUTIVE COUNCIL
FROM: Michael Weir - Retired NBA — Region 5

| was appointed by Executive Vice President Paul Bamer 1o investigate the charges
brought against President Brian Renfroe by Chris Jackson, Director of City Delivery.
Attuched are my findings organized by cach specific charge along with the supporting
documents for each charge.

Also included are the charging letters sent by Chiris Jackson. the rebuttal by President
Renfroe and the medical documentation submitted by President Renfroe.

Because of the way the charges were brought agamnst President Renfroe in two separate
letters; both containing a Charge | and Charge 2, | have designated them as A or B.
Following is a list of the charges:

Charge | (A):
Abandoned Position and Dereliction/Neglect ol duty.

Charge 1 (B),
Neglect of Duty.

Charge 2 (A):
Conduct. lmpaired driving after hours in a8 NALC owned vehicle.

Charge 2 (B):

Circulating False or Misleading Statements about a NALC Officer:

Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential information about an employee
matter,

Charge 3 Withdrawn.

Charge 4:
Conduct. Behavior to female member unbecoming of our National President.

Charge 53: Withdrawn.

Churge 6:

Conduct shamelul and inexcusable,




Dute; July 11, 2023

National Association of Letter Carrigrs
Executive Council

100 Indiana Ave., NW

Washington DC 20001

RE: CHARGES AGAINST NALC PRESIDENT BRIAN L. RENFROE
Dear NALC Executive Council Members:

In accordance with Article 10 of the National Constitution, | the undersigned do
hereby bring the following charges against National President Brian Renfroe for
Neglect of Duty and Violation of the Constitution (sbandored his position,
dereliction/neglect of duty, and conduet),

BACKGROUND: NALC National President Brian L, Renfroe was aware of his
alcohol affliction long before he ran for the NALC presidency as demonstrated by
his DUI arrest in September 2018, vet failed to disclose his affliction when seeking
the highest position in the Union. He has failed successful treatment since the DUL
He has further refused a recent suggested penod of in-house rehabilitation and
alcohol abatement in denial of recommendations from rehab professionals. Afier
details of his absence during contract negotiations hegan to appear on soctal media,
he finally disclosed and detailed his alcoholism in a June 24, 2023 letter posted on
Facebook. This problem should have been disclosed well before Renfroe sought
and accepted the position as National President. Words and actions of an alcoholic
aren't just washed away when they do seek treatment. While he will receive
support in rehabilitation, he must also be held accountable. He owes the
responsibility he ook on when he accepted the Union's Lop position, He owes the
membership the trust that was put in him when they voted for him. He owes the
responsibility of dues paid for hiz best efforts every day in the performance of his
duties. The President of any such large organization 18 held to a higher standard
and he knew that when he sought the position. He owes the membership an
explanation.

|
CHARGES AGAINST NALC PRESIDENT BRIAN RENFROE




Another set of charges are pending against President Renfroe for abandoning the
membership during USPS-NALC contract negotiations --the most crucial duty of
his position. And further, Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential
information about an employce matter by spreading slanderous, catastrophic
allegations towards the Vice President —to the extent that it would severely and
negatively affect his life & livelihood and tamish his reputation. He then failed to .
formally retract the allegations when proven false.

Within & few months afler being sworn in as NALC President, Renfroe failed to
maintain the integrity of his position by demonstrating a lack of responsibility and
reliability.

This set of charges include additional actions which demonstrate Renfroe's
inability to handle the duties of his position as follows:

CHARGE 1: Abandoned Position and Dereliction/Neglect of duty. After
President Renfroe's attendance was scheduled and announced, he failed to show at
Regions 1, 11, and 14 Regional Rap Sessions where the membership in these three
regions were there waiting on him to arrive and speak. The antending Branch
Officials --sent by their members' dues— expected to be updated by the National
President on the latest issues affecting Letter Carriers and report the same back to
their membership.

Renfroe’s no-show AWOL harmed the Union by causing a waste of time and
resources. The negative optics of the local leaders who had to fill the void without
advance preparation to do so was a disappointment to the members present and
further generated a negative impression of the NALC.

CHARGE 2: Conduct. Impaired driving after hours in # NALC owned
vehicle, While driving a NALC vehicle after work hours at 10:49 PM on
Wednesday 09/12/2018 —according to the attached Superior Court of the Distric
of Columbia Criminal Division-- then Executive Vice-President Renfroe was
arrested {or "Diriving under the Influcnce of alcohol andior drug ar any
combination thereof™ (DUL), The Superior Court narrative as detailed in relevant
part stated:

The police henrd excessive honking when Renfroe almost hit two cyclists. An unknown
female waved down the police car and 1old them she believed the driver [Renfroc] was
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imoxicated. The police turned sround and followed Renfroe who twice crossed double
yellow lines. He was then pulled over and the police stated Renfroe smelled of alcohol
and his speech was slurred. The police also noticed him swaying while standing and he
had bloodshot eyes. Renfroe admitted to drinking at “The Alibi Bar™  When the police
were talking to Renfroe, he admitted that he probably would not pass the tests and
probably should not have driven home. However, he refused to take the Standard Field
Sobrizty Tosts (SFST) sating he first needed 10 consult with a lawyer. At that point, the
Police Officers plsced Renfroe under ureest for driving under the influence (DU

Renfroe's drinking then driving a NALC car almost caused serious injury or
possible death to two cyclists and created a serious liability to the NALC. The
NALC vehicles are provided for business and personal use, and not intended to be
used for drinking at bar-runs (wrong place, wrong time),

CHARGE 3: Conduct, Misuse of Union Funds. On Monday 03/13/2023,
President Renfroe and his Chief of Staff left the Committee of President’s Meeting
(COP) in Detroit and traveled to New Orieans. They checked into the Ritz, a non-
Union Hotel and checked out the next day. There were no Union events in New
Orleans,

Union funds are not authorized (o be used for additional entertainment excursions
outside the line of travel to an authorized event,

CHARGE 4: Conduct. Behavior to female member unbecoming of our
National President. On Tuesday 03/14/2023, President Renfroe and his Chief of
Staff traveled from New Orleans to Biloxi, Mississippi for Region 8 RAP Scssion.
On Wednesday 03/15/2023, NALC Member Suzy Miller’s statement indicates she
went into the bar after the last training class ended and was approached by Renfroe
who suggested her Branch merge with Decatur, After she explained her reasons for
denying a merger, she states Renfroe pressurcd her and further told her she was
"not being loyal to the NALC"  Her response was that she was loyal to the NALC
and gave further explanation including the fict she'd reached out to Corey Walton
who helped her with a grievance, She states that Renfroe then responded “So vou
are Corey s bitch now"”. She stated she fell "very uncomfortable due to the
aggression in the tone of his voice'. She called over her friend Brian Buttrey who
heard what had been said. She stated her friend .. threatened to whoop Brian
Renfroe for the inappropriate accusation and disrespect he was displaying .. "
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NALC Member Buttrey also wrote a statement and said he was *' ., incensed from
hearing Brian Renfroe call my friend a bitch”. Words were exchanged and Buttrey
states he told Renfroe he'd “bear his fucking ass if he ever said anything like that
again”, The altercation was broke-up by several people stepping between the two.

Traditionally our National Presidents are greatly respected, and they conversely
treat our members with the same respect. Calling a NALC Member Suzy Miller a
bitch is unacceptable conduct --and unbecoming of the dignified behavior we
expect from our highest NALC Official.

CHARGE S: Conduct unrefiable and untruthful. President Renfroe has not
been truthful/honest to his Executive Council. Including but not limited to
untruthfully blaming the printer. Each NALC Officer trusted Renfroe and paid a
considerable amount of money for their share of a nationwide campaign mailing
that was supposed to be mailed out simultaneously with the mailing of the ballots
so their literature would arrive in member mailboxes along with the ballot on the
same day. Instead, the mailing was not sent out for over a week after the ballots
were received by the members. Normally most members who vote do so within a
few days of receiving the ballots, While the entire slate was elected, the vote
spread would have been greater with timely receipt of the slate’s literature that the
candidates paid 10 be mailed along with the ballots, When questionad about the
delay of the mailing, Renfroe claimed it was printer eeror, however the printer
stated it was due to Renfroe's lack of prompt review & approval to mail, All
printers will not print without final approval from a responsible designated official.

An obvious lack of reliability was demonstrated by Renfroe which resulted in a
significant delay of a nationwide mailing, The candidates on Renfroe's slate relied
on the strength of the ticket 1o get elected and they all paid a large sum of money
for the mailing to arrive along with the ballot. This shortcoming was also apparent
and noted by local NALC Officers who had to handle numerous phone ¢alls from
members asking names of slate candidates.

CHARGE 6: Conduct shameful and inexcusable. President Renfroe clicked
“like" on 4 social medis poest supporting the Ku Klux Klan (KKK).
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Our membership is proudly diverse, and for our President publicly displaying
“like" in support of a KKK social media site is despicable, inexcusable, and
unfitting of the behavior we expect from our highest NALC Official,

President Renfroe acting in the capacity of his office has exposed the Union to
possible litigation and liability because of his actions, Such rash and unprincipled
behavior has disqualified him from a leadership position within the NALC.
Theretore, Renfroe should be removed from office.

I the undersigned did not cause this calamity or itstiming...it was the leadership
failure of Renfroe. Each of us has a responsibility to act expeditiously on this
matter and move forward with the business of the Union.

Respectfully Submitted By:

Director of City Delivery, NALC

ATTACHMENTS:

SUPPORTING CHARGE 1: Email from Region | Host San Diego Branch 70
President Ricardo Guzman on Renfroe’s no-show at Region | RAP Session,

SUPPORTING CHARGE 2: Capy of Superior Court of the District of Columbia
Criminal Division detailing DUJ in 2018,

SUPPORTING CHARGE 4: Statement from NALC Member Suzy Miller and
Witness Brian Buttrey,

SUPPORTING CHARGE 6: A copy of the social media site displaying “like” by
Renfroe,
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Date; July 11, 2023

National Association of Letter Carriers
Executive Council

100 Indiana Ave,, NW

Washington DC 2000

Re: Charges against NALC President Brian L. Renfroe
Dear NALC Executive Council Members:

in accordance with Article 10 of the National Constitution, | the undersigned do
hereby bring the following charges against National President Brian L. Renfroe for
Neglect of Duty and Violation of the Constitution (Circulating False or Misleading
Statements about a NALC Officer).

Charge 1: Neglect of Duty: On or sbout April 20, 2023, President Renfroe took
a leave of absence from the NALC during contract negotiations which commenced
on February 22, 2023, for an agreement which expires on midnight May 20, 2023,

During the period of the weeks preceding the opening session, President Renfroe
was missing and his whereabouts were unknown. According to the wstimony of
NALC Officers, President Renfroe only attended one other bargaining session.
President Renfroe's continual absence and no shows during a critical time of
negotiations has adversely impacted the Union’s ability to effectively represent the
NALC’s objectives during contract negotiations.

In addition, President Renfroe's departure left the bargaining team with no notes or
evidence of advance preparations for negotiations. This placed the replacement
negotiating team at a disadvantage of having to start from seratch midway through
negotiating period.

Article 9 of the National Constitution defines the duties of the officers, including
the President. Section (e) specifically applies to the NALC President's
responsibility for carrying out the Collective Bargaining Duties of the Union.
President Renfroe took leave without notice and without making any appointments

to replace him during contract negotiations. This led 1o a lack of
10F3
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co-ordination and caused delays in making important decisions, and for & time,
caused a lack of direction,

Having a personal crisis is part of life and how one deals with crisis defines a true
leader. There is no indication that President Renfroe was in immediate peril,
completely incapacitated, or confined 1o a hospitable, He is receiving out-patient
treatment for & condition that did not render him unable to complete the minimal
duties needed 1o ensure ongoing collective bargaining obligations, Instead. he
disappeared without any notification of where he was, how long he would be gone,
and further failed to make appointments of those who could step up to protect the
best interests of the membership during contract negotiations. As such, Renfroe
has clearly failed to perform his duties as President during contract negotiations, a
period where the membership would be the most egregiously harmed by his-
absence. Consequently, Renfroe has not demonstrated the ability and/or desire 1o
serve as NALC President and should be removed from office by the NALC
Executive Council.

Charge 2: Circulating False or Misleading Statements aboat & NALC Officer:
Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential information about an
employee matter. On or about March 30, 2023, at Region 1's Training in San
Diego, California, storics began eirculating about NALC Vice President James
Henry having inappropriate contact with female headquarters' staff. Testimony
from several sources assert that President Renfroe had informed them of alleged
complaints prior to the regional training.

Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential information about an employee
matter. When NALC Vice President James Henry became aware of the false
allegations after the Region | Training, he immediately attempted to meet with
President Renfroe regarding the unfounded accusations. Brother Henry has
documented his numerous unsuccessful efforts to meet with Renfroe who initially
promised to meet with him but failed 10 do so, and further failed to respond to
subsequent efforts by Brother Henry to meet regarding the false rumors spread.

Vice President Henry had no choice but to approach Executive Vice President Paul
Bamer and insist upon an investigation. An investigation was subsequently
conducted by EVF Barner and s special meeting of the Executive Council was
20F3
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scheduled. At the meeting EVP Barner informed the Council that he had the matter
fully investigated and there was no substance to the allegations.

Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential information about an employee
matter.

Article 9 of the National Constitution (Executive Council 17) requires the
Executive Council to investigate. The Council has the responsibility to investigate
and act against any member who circulates false or misleading statements about an
Officer of this Union. Accordingly, any member who engages in such conduct has
violated the National Constitution. [t should be recognized that false accusations
of this nature have ruined careers & lives, and the harm (o Brother Henry caused
by false rumors circulated nationwide has already been done, This type of
allegation has the potential to impede eny officer’s ability to carry out their
assigned duties. Now it is time to do the right thing and the enly way to do that is
by publicly clearing and retracting the untrue falsehoods initiated and spread by
Renfroe,

Furthermore, President Renfroe acting in the capacity of his office has exposed the
Uinion to possible litigation and liability because of his actions. Such rash and
unprincipled behavior has disqualified him from a leadership position within the
NALC. Therefore, Renfroe should be removed from office.

I the undersigned did not cause this calamity or its timing, ..it was the leadership
failure of Renfroe. Each of us has a responsibility to act expeditiously on this
matter and move forward with the business of the Union.

Respectfully Submitted By,

Director of City Delivery, NALC

ATTACHMENTS: SUPPORTING CHARGE 2 - Emall from James Henry
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Charge 1(A): Abandoned Position and Dereliction/Neglect of Duty

President Renfroe was scheduled to attend the Regional Rap Sessions of
Region 1, Region 11 and Region 14. [t is true that his attendance was announced,
and a'significant period of time was set aside for him to speak to the attendees. When
he did not show up, the NBAs had to scramble to fill that time in two of the Regions.

In his statement regarding this issue, President Renfroe said he was physically
incapscitated. He did attend the Region 7 Rap Session in Minneapolis, but indicated
he was in intense pain. Michelle McQuality attended that Rap Session as well. They
both arrived on March 28, but President Renfroe came in on a later flight, (He had
just returned on March 28 to the NALC Headquarters building afier an extended
absence from March 16 through March 27, during which no one knew exactly where
he was. He flew out that evening to attend the Rap Session.) On March 29, President
Renfroe¢ spoke for three hours, then attended a retirement dinner for retired NBA
Troy Fredenburg that evening. He and Michelle took an early flight back to
Washington, DC on the morning of March 30,

I spoke with Michelle, NBA Patrick Johnson and former NBA Troy
Fredenburg. Each of them indicated that President Renfroe did not exhibit any signs
of being sick or having any physical ditficulties during that day and that evening.

President Renfroe had previously requested that his Chief of Staft obtain
tickets for the opening day between the Washington Nationals and the Atlanta Braves
on March 30, He indicated that he would take EVP Paul Barner to the game. He
never notified EVP Bamer of this plan, Chief of StafT Kori Blalock said that she did
arrange for the tickets through a political fundraiser; but her understanding is that
Brian did not attend the game:

President Renfroe and Michelle McQuality were scheduled to fly together to
San Diego on March 31 for the Region | Rap Session, but President Renfroe did not
make that flight. Branch 70 President Ricarde Guzman picked up Michelle at the
airport. Shortly thereafter, President Renfroe contacted President Guzman to tell him
he had injured his toe and had to seek medical treatment. He told President Guzman
he would be flying in the next day, April 1, While President Guzman was wailing at
the airport the next day, President Renfroe texted him that he had missed his
connecting flight. He did not indicate whether or not he was still coming for the Rap
Session; and he did not respond to President Guzman's attemplts to get back in touch
with him. The reality is he never got on the first [light out of Washington, DC. (See
Attachment: [ have enclosed the various tickets that were issued for the trip 10 San




Diego and the return to Washinton, DC.) Metropolitan Travel advised that their
system indicated the trip was suspended. This meuans that no part of the ticket was
used. Had President Renfroe flown on the first leg of the ticket, their gystem would
have reflected that he had checked in and used part of the ticket.

One hour before he was scheduled to speak on April |, President Renfroe
called NBA Keisha Lewis and informed her he could not make it due to a problem
with his foot, Keisha contacted VP James Henry and asked him if he could step in
via Webex. Michelle had some notes for the President’s presentation with her: and
she was able to provide them to VP Henry 1o assist him in addressing the members.
However, it was a last-minute situation with a lot of technical difficulties because it
was not plannad. VP Henry spoke for approximately 20 minutes, from his location
on vacation. By cancelling at the last moment, not only did President Renfroe fail to
fulfill his duties, but he also left others having to fill in for him with little or no
preparation. President Guzman said that many members had traveled considerable
distances to hear President Renfroe’s presentation and were upset at his absence,
NBA Keisha |.ewis agreed with President Guzman's assessment, She-also said they
expected him 10 be there and are still upset that he did not come. (See Attachment: |
have enclosed an email from President Guzman. dated June 24, requesting an
explanation for his absence from the Region | Rap Session)

Region 11°s Rap Session was scheduled from April 4-6 in Syracuse, NY. On
April 4 ai 2:36 PM, NBA Mark Camilli texted President Renfroe to ask when he was
landing. and if he was going to need transportation. President Renfroe responded
that he would be getting in late and would just uber or take a cab. NBA Camilli
texted back with breakfast arrangements and the starting time of 8:00 AM for the
peneral session. At 6:42 PM, President Renfroe asked for the hotel’s location, and
Mark provided it. President Renfroe contacted Doug Lape by text sometime between
7:00 PM and 9:00 PM on April 4 to tell him he was not coming. Doug and Michelle
McQuality were present at the Rap Session to assist with the training. Doug notified
NBA Mark Camilli that evening. Initially, Mark thought he might be joking, At 7:53
AM on April 5, seven minutes before the general session was 1o start, it became clear
that he was not. President Renfroe texted NBA Mark Camilli that his dad's infection
had spread to his blood, so he was going back down there that morning. He
apologized and asked Mark 10 give everyone his best. When President Renfroe’s
sister, Liz Bracey, was asked about this visit to their father. she responded that he
had not visited him at that time. Again, President Renfroe left others in the difficult
position of having to fill in for him with little advance preparation. NBA Camilli




noted that 50% to 60% of the attendees were first-timers. They had been enticed by
their branch leaders to attend because the National President would be there to
provide a detailed report on the issues that NALC was dealing with. They were
disappointed when he did not show up. (See Attachments: | have enclosed u copy of
the text thread between President Renfroe and NBA Mark Camilli. [ have also
provided copies of the flights arranged for him by Metropolitan Travel which he did
not use.)

The Region 14 Rap Session was held on April 15-17 in Manchester, NH,
President Renfroe called EVP Paul Barner the day before it started to inform him,
he would not be able to make it, Paul informed NBA Rick DiCecca that President
Renfroe had a personal matter to attend o, so Paul would be attending instead. He
New down on Saturday night and did the presentation on Monday morning, Rick had
to cancel a prestdents’ meeting that he had scheduled for Saturday night; but because
Paul stepped in, the training was able to proceed as planned. Many of the attendees
were aware of the President’s father’s illness and assumed that he had taken a wrn
for the worse. The general consensus among the members was that they were
sympathetic to President Renfroe's situation and wished him well. Actually, at that
time, President Renfroe was preparing to tuke a | eave of Absence 1o begin treatment
for alcohol addiction. That is why he was not available for this Rap Session.




Metropoltan Travel Ssrvices
4520 Qid Columbia Pike
Annandeale, Virginia 22003

NALC Sale Invoice No: 2060357
Attn: Nicole Rhine Date lssued: 3/23/2023
100 indiana Avenus NW Agent: Tracy

Washinton DG 20001
Phone: +1 (202) 3834896
E-Mail @NALC.ORG

Taveler Depadmml Depart Date Rat\m Date Rermarke
Typo Tiehawgnfm . AifineVendor Tatal Fare
From " UFight AL Depat Amive
Renfroe/Brian Lae 33112023 4722023 EXECVIP
Dom. Alr 7894751468 American Alirfines 1.0689.71
Exch. 7884348801
OCA Washingten  CLY Charlofte 627 AA  3/31/2023 3.32 PM 3/317/2023 512 PM
CLT Chariotte SAN San Disgo 1740 AA  3/31/2023 617 PM 33172023 B34 PM
SAN San Diego DFW Dallas 2188 AA  4/2/2023 815 AM A2/2023 212 PM
DFW Dallas DCA Washington 2688  AA  4/272023 3:22 PM A/2023 708 PM
Payments Applisd To This:Invoice. ~— 2
VI 44-XXXX 2827 Rmd 3(23’2023 Pymt Far Inv #2080357 -1,089.71
Invoice Total 1,089.71
Payment Total A,069.74
Balance Due 0.00

W23202) 14445 PM Page 1




Metropoiitan Travel Services
4520 Old Columbia Pike
Annandaie, Virginia 22003

NALC

Attn. Nicole Rhins

100 Indiana Avenus NW
Washirton DC 20001
Fhona: +1 (202) 3834685
E-Mal @NALC ORG

Traveler Departrmemt Depsrt Date Retum Daia
Type Alrfine/Vandor
From Fiight AL Depan
Renfrea/Brian Laa 4/1/2023 A2/2023
Daom. A 7884752170 American Aitlinas
Exch: 7804751466
DCA Washington  PHX Phoenix 2006 AA  4/1/20237.03 AM
PHX Phosnix SAN San Diego 2838 AA  4/1/2023 10:04 AM
SAN San Diego  DFW Dallas 2185 AA  4ARR023IFI6AM
DFW Daltas DCA Washington 2889  AA 47272023 322 PM
Payments Applied To This Invoice
VI44-XXXX-2827 Receivad V3172023 Pymit For Inv #2061251

WZU2023 14444 PV

Sala Invoice No: 2061251
Date lesuad: 3/31/2023

Agent: Penda
Remarks
Total Fare
Amve
EXECVIP
1,850.59
4/1/2023 9115 AM
4/1/2023 11:28 AM
4212023212 PM
4722023 7:09 PM
-1,850.58
Invoice Total 1,850.5%
Payment Total -1.860.59
Balance Due 0.00



Matropciitan Travel Sesvicas:
4520 Oid Columbia Pike

Annandaie, Virgina 22003

NALC

Attn: Nicoia Rhine

100 Indians Avenue NW
Washinton OC 20001
Phone: +1 (202) 3834695
E-Mzil. @NALC.ORG

4142023 A/4J2023
Dom, Al 7884348805 American Aidings
DCA Washington  SYR Syracuss 5053 AA 4/4/2023 3:36 PM

SYR Syracuse DCA Washingtan 6053  AA  4/4/2023 5:36 PM
VI 44000(X-2827 Received 28202 Pymt For Inv #2055135

BIEAINZ) Y AT A BPM

Szale Invoice No: 2065135
Dats lssusd: 2/6/2023
Agent: Tracy
Remarke
Tota! Fara
Asmive
EXECVIP B
53621
A/4/2023 5.04 PM
AAR023 704 PM
-588.21
Invoice Total 596.21
Payment Total 58821
Balance Due 0.00
Fag= |




lian Travei Services
4520 Old Columbia Piks
Annandaie, Virginia 22003

NALC

Attn: Micole Rhine

100 Indians Avenue NW
Washinton DC 20001
Phone: +1 (202) 3834685
E-Mal @NALC.ORG

Traveler P e Dspart Date Return Dals
- From To. Flight AL Depant

Ranfroa/Brian Lee 4/412023 4/5/2023
Dom. Air 7889443889 Amarican Aliines

Exch: 7884348806
DCA Washington  SYR Syracusa K053 AA 4/4/2023 3:38 PM
SYR Syracuse DCA Washington 5062 AA  4/512023 5.36 PM

pPayments Applied To This Invoice ,
/1 44 X00KX-2827 Recelved 3IMr023 Pymt For Inv #2067680

AZVAN VAR 42 PV

Saie Invoice No: 2057630
Date lssued: 3/1/2023

Agent Tracy
Remarks
Total Fare
Arrive
EXECVIP
0.00
4/4/2022 5,04 PM
4/572023 7.04 PM
0.00
Invoice Total 0.00
Balance Due 0.00
Page |



NALC

At Nicole Rhine

100 Indiana Avenue NW
Washinton DC 20001
Phone: +1 {202) 38346856
E-Maill @NALC.ORG

ATI02) 1 4642 PM

Metropolitan Travel Services
4520 Old Columbia Pika
Annandale, Viiginia 22003

MMAWM

47512023
Amarican Ammes

4843 AA  4/4/2023 10:30 PM
4/5/2023 5:38 PM

" Pymi For inv #2061403

Sala Invoice No; 2061403
Date Issusd, 4/4/2023

Agent. Tracy
Total Eare
EXECVIP A
530.00
A142023 11:50 PM
4/5/2023 7.04 PM
530.00
Invoice Total 530,00
Payment Total -530.00
Balance Dua 0.00
Page 1












From: Ricargo Guzman <rgnaic 700wt >
- Date: Jung 24, 2023 at 13433 PM ED7
To: Brian Ranfroe <RENFROEZ a0 1o

Ce: Paul Bamer <Bames B rao (>,  “Jamas D CHenr e<3t S >, Njcoi Rhing <5 mEle AL S0
Mack Jullon <julion’& naic.arg, Chnstopret JACKETN €emmd S0 0 =0 1 35, Manny Pemllz

<PERALTA@ ralc.org>, Danisl Toth <o Enar o, J Yates < =72 Staw, Staphanie Stewart
| csstewantEnale org>, Lasry Blown «<00 0 Briad O, =T & 3 Cnrm heage
<hgsgePnaic org>, Keisha Lawis <= vis 2naic © = Nick Vahadss <. .- ~LESE =coo. Michae! Caret
searaliinals o=, "Danisl P Varsiug” < ’~T.’:' _Sap boge Davie Tesgaien <2y T STALSTx

mude@nalc.org, Cynthia Johnson < 1rsin e > Siee Lasssn<qsEs Lo o > Eddie Davicsoh
clavidson @ nait.orgs, Shawn Boyd <o 2 b nus oo, Mark 8 Samili” <Calliod & >, Bilan
Thompson <hampson @ nale. oG, Vada Fraston < 33z~ =750 © 7o Ricnang J. DiCeszea’

| DiCeccaFnalc ai, Bruoe Didrikeen < drkzs & &l 7>

Subject: President Renfroe back to work?

Brian,

|1 S3w the Junetesnth video and the stasment regarding Brothel Qdtes TSgic gesn 07 nE NALC wabsite
What | did not see was an announcameant Ihat yiau am back & work. 7o this daia we have Not racaved a
| lsttsr; orany other type of notice. 10 =t us know yad have Emea 10 wark,

| received A letiar dated April 24, 2023, arnouncing that you wers on = Isave of absanca. As you know you
work for the membership, W desarve 1o be officially notified of your rSturn 1o wotk. We wiso dsserve an
axplanation ap to why you wese on o leave of absstice. In aadition. NALG Regian 1 gesarves an sxplanation
as to why you ware AWOL for the Region | Rap Sesson on Aprl 1, 2023,

There are many rumors that are very disturbing persaining to you, 1tis for i rasson wa nead D know the
tacts. ‘We av requesting you dissaminata the information Mo marmbarship deserves o know.

|
i Unienism,

Ricardo Guemaen
President, NALC Branch 70







Charge | (B): Neglect of Duty

This charge cites Article 9 of the National Constitution which defines the
duties of the officers; in particular, Section (¢) which “specilically applies 10 the
NALC President's responsibility for carrying out the Collective Bargaining Duties
of the Union.” It states that President Renfroe’s absences during the period of
preparing for collective bargaining and engaging in collective bargaining were
detrimental to the Union's ability to effectively bargain for a new contract.
Additionally, it alleges that President Renfroe did not leave any notes or evidence of
advance preparations for the negotiating team to rely upon as they moved forward
with their efforts on behalf of the membership, This resulted in their having to stan
from scratch midway through the negotiating period.

[ have enclosed a Bargaining Timeline for 2023, which was prepared by
Special Executive Assistant 1o the President Tim McKay. Tim also provided the
NALC-USPS Subcommittee Assignments and the NALC Internal Bargaining
Subcommitiee Schedules. (See Attachments) Six national officers and two NALC
HO staiTers served as the chairs of the National Agreement Articles that were
covered by the seven Subcommittees,

Prior to the Executive Council Meeting in Marieta, GA on January 23-20.
there was only oné meeting addressing the Collective Bargaining process, This
occurred on January 18, It was essentially a general overview of the process,
including discussions of assignments, timelines, strategy, and goals. In February,
there were several meetings regarding the Bargaining Subcommittees which would
be addressing workplace rules. EVP Paul Bamner, Special Executive Assistant to the
President Tim McKay and Assistant 10 the President for Administrative Aftairs Chris
Henwood were very involved in these meetings. There was a Bargaining
Subcommittee Meeting on February 14, All officers and staff who work at
Headquarters were apprised of their roles, responsibilities and assignments, I'he goal
wits to finish all internal subcommittee meetings and submit bargaining proposalsto
main table negotiators by the end of March. President Brian Renfroe and Executive
Vice President Paul Barner oversaw (hat meeting. None of these meetings addressed
callective bargaining on the economics issues for a new contract.

The Collective Bargaining Opening Session was held at USPS HOQ on
February 22, This is, essentially, a photo op, President Renfroe and PMG Deloy
shook hands and gave their respective speeches regarding the need to work together
toward achieving a National Agreement that best serves the interests of letter carriers



and the Postal Service. Achieving this goal requires the full attention of all NALC
officers. but especially the National President. The only time that President Renfroe
is listed in attendance at another meeting prior to his taking a Leave ol Absence on
April 17 is the USPS Financial Presentation which was held at USPS HQ on April
10, This is 4 one-sided presentation which happens during each year when the
contract is due to expire and is not a negotiating session,

The next day. the Collective Bargaining Subcommittess met in their
respective groups all day at NALC HQ, Thereafler, they generally met in accordance
with the established schedulés, in-person and/or virtually. On March 6, bi-weekly
bargaining logistics meetings began with USPS for planning, logistics, timelines.
bargaining proposals, et¢. As noted in the timeline, this has been going on for five
months: At this point. all the méetings are being chaired by EVP Paul Bamer. This
is not unusual, Traditionally, the Executive Vice President oversees the workplace
rulesfissues while the president oversees the economics negotiations. Ultimately,
203 proposals were generated by the subcommittees, 140 of these were shared with
USPS during negotiations. One or (wo subcomumittees were still working on issties
beyond the March 31 deadline, Two times per week, EVP Paul Barner, in partnership
with the heads of the subcorimittees, discuss their various ideas and positions with
management counterparts to find resolutions that are acceptable to both sides, Paul
indicated that they are making good progress in this arena.

President Brian Renfroe started his leave of absence on April 17, Prior to then,
he was absent for significant periods of time during which ne one knew where he
was. (See Attachment: 1 have enclosed the Door Access Flat Report tor the time
{rames in question.) In addressing the Charge: Neglect of Duty, President Renfroe
argues that he did not leave the Union unprepared for contract negotigtions. On page
6 of President Renfroe’s rebuttal to this Charge., he states that: “the only replacement
on any negotiating team was EVP Paul Barmer feplacing me in economic
discussions.” This is not true. On April 20, Paul reached out to former president Fred
Rolando for assistance with the econonics negotiations. Paul and Fred worked
closely together to get this process on track, The Executive Council was aware of
the former president's involvement. Also, on page 6 of President Renf rope’s rebuttal,
he stated: “During the time | was dealing with my illness, EVP Barner progressed
with our goals; and, upon my retum, we have continued to move forward
seamlessly.” The fact is Fred and Paul developed a strategy and some goals on what
they wanted to sccomplish on the economic issues, Brian and Paul are now moving
forward with that plan, On Page 6, Pregident Renfroe further stated: “EVP Barner



and | communicated throughout the collective bargaining process prior 1o my
absence, und throughout the majority of my absence.” This is not true. EVP Barner
expluined that their communication regarding collective bargaining prior to
Prosident Reniroe's absence involved workplace rules, Paul asserts that he received
no idess or guidance on collective bargaining on the economics side of the equation,
Paul further stated that he is unaware of any Prep work done by President Renfroe
in advance of his absence. He asserts that he and Fred started from scratch. He had
never engaged in economics negotiations before, nor had President Renfroe for thal
matter. Additionally, Paul asserted that they had rarely com municated during Brian's
absence: and, when they did, it was mainly about how Brian was doing with his
treatment. Special Executive Assistant to the President Tim McKay noted that during
his infrequent conversations with Brian during his absence, they discussed his health
and sports for the most part.

Prior to his retirement, President Rolando started running tables with Jim
Vates. the Director of Life Insurance, in anticipation of the 2023 Collective
Barguining negotiations. Jim is a labor cconomist. He plays a very important role on
the economics side of negotigtions, When USPS and NALC gel close o an
agreement on the pay fable (starting pay, 1op pay, number of steps involved, length
of waiting perfods, ete.), he provides the cost-analysis so the parties understand what
the economics will truly entail. That usually does not occur until afer the contract
has expired, Jim indicated that President Renfroe was aware of the initial tables tha
Fred had developed and left for him, Other than brief conversations in the hallway,
Jim further stated that the first actual meeting he had with President Renfroe on the
economics was one week after his June 26" return from his Leave of Absence. That
would have been over one morth after the contract had already expired,

As soon as he came onboard in April, Fred contacted DPMG Doug Tulino to
et him know that he and EVP Paul Barner would be negotiating with him. Mr. Tulino
told him he had never heard from President Renfroe at all, On the NALC-USPS
Subcommittee Assignments handout | enclosed, DPMG Tulino and President
Renfroe were scheduled to meet on Articles 9, 21 and Appendix A. While the other
Subcommitiee meetings took place, those three did not. Mr. Tulino also noted that
this was the latest NALC and USPS had ever started negotiations on the economics,
Fred was concerned that DPMG Tulino might employ that argument at Interest
Arbitration should the parties go that route, It is important to remember that the 90-
day period for negotiations. which began on February 22, was sel 10 end on May 20,
At that point, the parties were already sixty days into the negotiating period, with the



contract ahout to expire in thirty days, and they had not even begun to negotate on
the economic issues. They were definitely starting from scratch. Involving Former
President Rolando at this stage of the zame was a necessary and good decision by
EVP Barner, Fred's knowladge and expertise gamered from three previous contract
negotiations as well as his personal commection with DPMG Tulino during those
negotiations allowed him and Paul to hit the ground running in the effort to get the
process on track.

As president, when contract negotiations were set 1o begin the next year, Fred
always started meeting informally with Doug in December. Then, after the opening
ceremony and the 90-day negotiating period had begun, they would meet once per
week. Those meetings were slways off-the-record, but they gave them the
opportunity to exchange ideas and conceptualize what the contract should look like
from their respective points of view. By the time they got 10 the hotel lockdown
week, they were well beyond a simple starting point on the road to crafting a
contract. This is not to say that they had a simple task ahead of them. (The last
contract was settled during arbitration, and the one before that was-settled just before
arbitration.) But by starting carly and meeting often, Fred and Doug laid the
groundwaork for, ultimately, reaching those settlements.

During lockdown week at the Doubletree by Hilton Hotel in DC-Crystal City
(May 15 - May 20, Fred and Paul initially shared with Doug the table that Fred had
worked up lust year, During those discussions, Fred contacted Jim Yates and asked
him for some updates to that table...changing the waiting periods, shortening the
time to the last step, adjustments to starting pay and top pay, eic. They shared the
new table with Doug and continued with their negotiations, In total, they had eight
meetings with Doug, their last being on June 28. Former President Rolando felt that
they were getting close 1o beginning to deal with the analytics of the pay scale, They
scheduled another meeting for two weeks later; but President Renfroe did not want
Farmer President Rolando to continue his involvement in the collective bargamning
process. 1 do not understand why President Renfroe took that position, The Union
ot such a late st@arton contract negotiations over the economic issues; it would seem
that having a valuable resource such as former President Rolando would be
heneficial moying forward. Nonetheless, President Renfroe and EVP Barner wok
that meetling and all subsequent meetings. The last time [ talked to Paul, he said he
thought they were making progress. We are, of course, past the sixty=day mediation
period and looking at possible arbitrators for interest arbitration.



On Monday, May 15, President Renfroe contacted Tim McKay. | e asked him
how the first day of bargaining had gone. Tim said it went well. This was the first
{ime Brian had called about collective bargaining since he had taken a Leave of
Absence. But, at that point, he did notask for any details. On May 19 or 20, President
Renfroe emailed Tim MeKay to get a copy of the statement from NALC about the
status of collective bargaining. Tim provided & working copy. Brian became very
anery when he saw that former President Rolando was invelved in cratting that
statement. The membership had the right to know that NALC had not reached a new
contract with the Postal Service before it expired on May 20. They also needed to be
apprised of the riext steps in the process. Again. President Renfroe seemed (o be
more concerned that the former president was involved in the negotiations instead
of grateful that he had stepped into the void left by Brian's absence to ensure that the
process moved forward for the benetit of the membership.

| asked Director of Life Insurance Jim Yates how the negotiations were soing.
He indicated that they were a little behind from two rounds ngo. | then asked him
where we would be if Former President Rolando had not gotten involved. He said
we would be further behind. When T asked Fred that question, he asserted that
President Renfroe's actions during the contract negotiations were negligent und
potentially disastrous for our 205,000 uetive city letter carrier members. Fred also
noted that Brian's inaction prior to 2023 by not pursuing treatment for his addiction
to alcohol played a significant role as well, Fred noted that there were at least a dozen
instances of drunkenness and inappropriate behavior toward a NALC staffer over
the vears, Former President Rolando further stated: While it was impornant for
President Renfroe to get treatment for his alcoholism; it was, nonetheless, a horrible
time to walk away from the Union, He further stated that the preparation and
engagement for collective bargaming, particularly on the economics of said
bargaining. is the president’s bailiwick and sworn duty. Fred also praised I'VP Paul
Bamer for his professional leadership during this difficult time. He pointed out how
he had managed to handle his own duties while stepping up to take on such an
important rol2 in the economics negotiations,

Alcohol addiction is & disease. That is a fact. But just like any other disease:
it needs to be treated sooner rather than later. Assistant Secretary-Treasurer Mack
Julion was an addiction counselor before becoming 4 letmer carrier. He stated that he
had some productive conversations with President Renfroe about his alcohol
addiction. He noted that in his experience dealing with this disease, the addict is not
responsible for his/her illness: but once they know they have a problem. it is on them
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1o correct it. President Renfroe didn't suddenly contract this disease in 2023, He has
exhibited the symptoms and the effects of alcohol addiction since 2016, at Jeast, (His
¢claim, on page 12 of his rebuttal, of not having a physical addiction in 2018 when
he was arrested for DUT notwithstanding.)

At the LA, canvention in 2016, EVP Renfroe was intoxicated and behaving
inappropriately. Kori Blalock Keller who, ut that time, was the NALC lobbyist and
in charge of the Legislative Department, was uncomiortable enough to ask President
Rolando to be removed from traveling with him, In the Fall of 2017, anather issue
arose with his alcoholism. Eddie Davidson, who was an assistant to the president for
legislative matters at that time, received u call from EVP Renfroe's phone at 1:00
um. When he answered, he was surprised to hear a woman's voice. As it happened,
she was a good Samaritan who had found Brian passed out in the bushes near his
apartment. She found Eddie’s number in Brian’s phone and called him to see if he
could help. At the time, Eddie lived in Fairfax, VA, so he called Paul Barner who
lived closer 16 DC. Paul did not answer. So, Eddie called the woman back to say he
was coming, but she said she had contacted another person with Brian's phone, and
that person would be coming, That person was Kori Blalock Keller, By the time she
arfived. Brian had revived enough to make his way back to his apartment. Kori did
not know his apartment number, but she was able 10 figure it out probably with the
help of the good Samaritan. She knocked on the door, asked him if he was okay,
velled at himt and then went home. Ed Morgan, Eddie, and Kori had a conversation
about the incident the next day, and President Rolando was told what had happened,
During my interview with her, Korl indicated that she knew Brian neaded help s
early as 2017,

At the 2018 National Convention in Detroit, EVP Renfroe was involved in
three separate incidents while intoxicated. Two of them involved inappropriate
hehavior toward other members' wives, The other one involved pro basketball player
Mike Bebe in the lobby of the Convention. Brian was grabbing on to him, and Bebe
pushed him off. Eddie and others had to get Brian away from him to avoid &
confrontation. Two months later, FVP Renfroe was arrested lor Driving LInder the
Influence {(DUL) in Washington, DC. Just over two weeks later, Eddie Davidson
arrived at the NALC HQ building early one morning to find that the side-door had
been hroken. He called Paul Barner, who informed him that his chief engineer, who
came into the office by 3:00 AM, had already apprised him of that fact. Eddie also
said that Paul informed him there was a video showing EVP Renlfroe yanking on the
door before the glass shattered, The damage probably occurred the night before, FVP
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Renfroe admitted to Paul that hé was responsible for the damage. He sald he just
pulled on the door once, and the glass shattered. The Mag lock on the door would
need 200 pounds of pressure to separate the magnet. Before that would happen, the
frame would flex, causing the glass to shatter, It would take a great deal of foree and
significant effort to accomplish that. Normal pulling on the door wouldn’t be
enough. Brian would have had to have been yanking on that door very hard for an
extended period of time, Given the fact that the card system for entry into the
building was in place at that time, the uestion is why? Lven if he had lost his card,
or didn't use it to exit the building, he wouldn't have been able to reenter the building
in that manner. | have enclosed a proposal from Central Glass DC, dated 10/01/2018,
1o fix the door. (See Attachment)

A fier the Detroit Convention, President Rolando assigned kddie Davidson 1o
handls the legislative side of TVP Renfroe’s duties. In February 2019, Eddic was
promoted to Executive Assistant to the President, but he actually worked directly
with Brian. He said that Brian was unreliable. His attendance was atrocious. Fither
he was not showing up for work or he would come in late and leave early. Eddie
Lsed Paul Barner as his resource for getting things done when Brian was unavailable.
Other stafters and some resident officers were aware of EVP Renfroe's behavior,
Fddic stated that it was common knowledge that he drank a lot and had a problem
maintaining control when he did, Sometime in 2019, Tim McKay 100k the issue of
Brian's drinking and attendance to President Rolando. He addressed it, and there was
improvement for a while. Then, at the National Rap Session in Denver (August
2019), Brian was drinking and became physically aggressive toward President CTitt
Sadler from Bradenton, FL. apparently because he was speaking with Kathy
Baldwin, Lew Drass's wife. Sadler wrote a letter to President Rolando. Fred
addressed it with Brian, who assured him he would take care of it, In reality, Eddie
took care of it, convincing Sadler that Fred would ensure it never happened again.
EVP Renfroe’s issues with attendance and unreliability lasted premty much until
NALC switched to remote work in accordance with Covid protocols. Remote work
remuined in place from March 2020 until July 2022, During this period, it was nearly
impossible to keep track of what Brian was doing and how he was behaving.

This puttern of behavior continued in the latter part of January, 2023 although
Chief of Staff Kori Blalock Keller said she knew President Renfroe was nol ina
good place at the beginning of the year. At the Executive Council meeting in Marieta,
G, President Renfroe showad up late and intoxicated to at [east one ol the meetings,
On one of the days, EVP Barner went to the parking lot (o call him. He drove up,
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exited the car, stumbled forward and would have fallen to the ground if Paul had not
caught him, On March 14, President Renfroe and Chief of Staff Keller traveled to
Biloxi. MS for the Region § Rap Session. Brian's presentation wits scheduled for the
nest day. He went to one of the bars in the Golden Nugget Casino where everyone
was staying, and the training was scheduled. (See Charge 4,) Many NALC members
were gathered there, and most of them were drinking. Chief of Staff Keller did not
20 to the bar, NBA Steve Lassan said that he left the bar at 2:30 AM. At that time,
President Renfroe was still there and still drinking. The Rap Session was scheduled
to start al 8:00 AM. At 6:30 AM. Brian texted Kori that they would meet in the lobby
hetween 7 & 7:30 AM. He did not show up. Executive Coach Julie Couret was
waiting there with Kori. They started to look for him. Unfortunately, there was no
room in his name because his room had been comped. They went to security for
help, saying this was, potentially. an emergency. Unbeknownst to them, RAAs
Morica Waller and Chris Strickland were also searching for him. Suddenly,
President Renfroe started rexting again and showed up at the elevator, He was clearly
intoxicated. Kori and Julie walked him to the room where the Rap Session was being
held. Kori was very concerned. She told him not to go into the room. Brian said 1'm
fine. so they entered together. President Renfroe did a significantly shorter version
of his presentation, NBA Lassan said he spoke for one hour at most. | asked Chiel
of Staff Keller if she thought anyone noticed he was intoxicated. She said it was
obvious to her, hut perhaps not so to the attendees. Steve Lassan said he didn’t seem
as erisp as usuul and o |ittle grumpy. Other attendees said he was slurring his words
and jumping around from one topic to another. They had difficulty understanding
the presentation.

From March 16 1o March 27, no one knew exaetly where President Renfroe
was and if he was going to come into the office, Chief of Staff Keller said she thought
he was in his apartment in DC. Secretary/Treasurer Nicole Rhine had charters that
only the president could sign and EVP Paul Bamer wanted to discuss collective
hargaining issues with him. When Paul was able 1o contact him by phone, Brian
would cite some medical issues, say he was coming in tomorrow, but would not
show up. He did come in for a little over three hours on March 28, took care of the
charters: then Brian left to attend the Region 7 Rap Session in Minneapolis. He and
Michelle McQuality did their presentations on March 29. President Rentroe also
attended @ retirement party for former NBA Troy Fredenburg that evening, He and
Michelle left very early the next morning. Previously. Brian had asked Kori 1o gel
him a couple of fundraiser tickets 1o the March 30 opening season baseball game



between the Washington Nationals and the Atlanta Braves, Brian's favorite team
Chief of Staff Keller had arranged them for him: but, apparently, he did not use them.
President Renfroe failed 1o attend Region 1's Rap Session on March 31 to April |,
(See Charge | (A)) From March 30 through April 9. President Renfroe was once
again AWOL. He did show up on April 10 for the USPS Financial Presentation. and
he was in the NALC HOQ Building for three-and-one-half hours on April 11, Six days
later, President Renfroe started his Leave of Absence.

Former President Rolando expressed his disappointment with how President
Renlroe’s behavior and absence had so significantly disrupted the collective
bargaining process. Fred knew that Brian had an alcohol abuse problem as curly as
2018. Periodically, he would address it with him; and Brian would allege he was
talking to a counselor regularly, who was helping him with his issues. (There is no
evidence that he actually did that.) Then, he would be okay fora while. But usually,
he would make excuses for his hehavior, citing his diabetes or another medical
ailment. Brian's pattern was he would drink. disappear, come back and everyone
would be happy: theén, he¢ would disappear and become a problem again, Not all of
the incidents | have cited were shared with Fred. Fred's plan was to have Brian at
his side constantly for an extended period; so, he could learn how to do the job of
being president. Covid quashed that plan, kveryone started working remotely, excepl
Fred. Tt wis difficult to monitor Brian and make sure he was ready for the challenge,
Fred couldn't tell if Brian was doing what he needed to do to prepare himself for the
presidency. Fred indicated that if he had known then, what he knows now, he would
have stayed at least through contract negotiations.

In early April of 2023, Kori reached out 10 Marty Walsh for help with
President Renfroe. Marty was President Biden's Secretary of Labor betore becoming
the Executive Director of the Hockey Players’ Union. More importantly. he is 20
years sober with his alcohol addiction and willing gource of assistance for those
still strugeling with their own addictions, Originally, she had given his name to
Brian: but when she realized Brian had not called him, she ook it upon herself to
hook them up. Marty recommended the Gosnold Treatment Center for inpatient
treaiment on Cape Cod. This is the same place that Murty Walsh used to treat his
addiction. On April 17, President Renfroe began his own treaiment there. Paul said
that he was on the phone with Brian and his counselor at one point during his 6-day
inpatient stay at Gosnold. They discussed treatment options going forward, The
counselor gave them three options: 1) continue his inpatient treatment, 2) enter an
Intensive Outpatient Program; and 3) go home and see how it goes, President
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Renfroe chose option 2. He provided me with medical documentation for his 6-day
inpatient stay at Gosnold as well is his intensive outpatient program (1OP) after he
left. The documentation covets his treatment through June 28. [ have included that
documentation with this report. (See Attachment) In my interview with him,
President Renfroe indicated that he still attends regular AA meetings, takes
medication, and receives a once per month shot which is an opioid receptor blocker.
He nsserted that he is doing well and feels healthier than he has for a long time,

| asked Marty Walsh several questions about aleohol addiction. He confirmed
that it is a disease which you must treat, It won't simply go away on its own. Lle
{irther affirmed that different people experience it in different ways. There are binge
drinkers. morning drinkers, evening drinkers, functional drinkers, ete. You could go
for a period of time without drinking: then, have a drink and fall right back into a
destructive pattern. All aleoholics have a physical addiction. You get treatment
and handle your sobriety on # day-to-day basis. It's important to have the support
of family, friends, and fellow addicts. Marty indicated that he spoke to Brian more
than onee and is still available if he needs to talk. He also provided some sobering
information about relapse tates for recovering alcoholics. Approximately 18% of
recovering alcoholics were able to abstain from drinking completely one year later.
He further stated that recovery rates are less than 36% for people with a severe or
lifetime alcohol dependence. However, 60% of those who are sober for two years
tend to remain that way,

The fict that President Renfroe decided to et help for his alcohol addicrion
is a good step forward for his health and well-being, Ihe tact that he waited s0 long
1o do so. and then took a Leave of Absence in the midst of contacl negotiations was
not good for the health and well-being of the Union.



Bargainir eline [All dates =Tim McK

January 18 —Collective Bargaining Mesting = Dverail bargaining process, assignments, timeling, strategy,
gools. (In attendance: Brizn Renfrae, Holly Feldman-Wiencek, Peter DeChiara, Tim McKay, Paul Barner,
Michelle MeQuality, Jim Sauber, Kelth Secular, lim Yates; Korl Blalock Keller, Chris Henwood, Doug Lape)

Februaty 1 - Interest Arbitration Discussion— Siratagy, assignments, timeline, goals. (In attendance.
8rian Renfroe, Holly Feldman -Wiencak, Peter DeChiara; TTm MeKay, Paul Barner, Michelle McQustity,
Jim Saubsr, Jim Yates, Kort Blalock Keller: Doug Lape; Keith Secular)

Fehruary 6 - Bargasining Subcommittea Meeting Prep —Agslgnmants, responsibilities, drafiing propasals,
timelines, ote, (1nattendance: Paul Barner, Tim Mckay, Chris Henwood)

Februaty 9= Bargaining Subcommittes Fianning ~ Assignments, responsibilities, drafting proposals,
timelines, ste. (Inattendancer Paul Barnar, Tim McKay, Chris Henwood)

Fabruary 10 - Cotlective Bargaining Opaning Planning Mesting— Loglstics, message, timeling, etz. (in
attendance: Brian Renfrog, Paul Barner, Tim MeXay, Kori Blatack Keller, Holly Feldman-Wiencek,
Madellne Alvis)

February 14 = Bargaining Subcommittee Meeting — Met with ail officers snd staff who work at HQ to
diseuss their roles, rasponsibilities, and assignments, The goal was tafinish all Internal subcommittee
mestings and submit targaining proposals to maln table negatiators by theend of Mareh (In
sttandance: Brigh Renfrae, Paul Barnar, Tim McKay, Doug Lape, Dan Toth, Cscar Fercalra, Stephen
Stewart, James Henty, Jazmin Corres, Greg Dikan, Danielle Fake Moarman, Michelle McQuality, Ron
Dsborne, Manny Peraitz, Cheis Hanwood, Jim Yates, Tamarz Twinh, Nicole Rhlne, Mack Jullon, Kori
Blalock Keilet, Holly Faldman-Wiencek, Kelth Secular)

Felruary 21-24 — Exscutive Councll Meéting = Overall bargaining discussion, subcommittes assignmants,
rales, responsibliities. repeat of class glven on Februaty 14 (in attendance: executive councll and staff)

Fcbmaryl? —Collactive Bargalning Opening at USPS HQ —(in attendance: executive council-and staff)

Eebruary 23 - Bargaining Subcommittag Meetings— Each subcommities met in group all day 3t NALC
HQ,

February 28 = Bargaining Mesting — Flanning— {In attandance:’ Paul Barnar and Tim Mckay)

March B — Bi-Weekly Bargaining Logistics Mestings Begin - Ment twice wekly with USPS chief
spokesparsen far planning, legistics, timelines, Gargaining proposals, etc, This has been going an fof five
menths now. (In attendance: Paul 8amer, Tim MeKay, and Jim Lioyd from USPS)

March 13 = Bargaining Meeting with Subcommiittez Chairy = Timelines, progress, goals, Q&A (In
attendance; Paul Barnae, Tim MeKay, Manny Peralta, Michello McQuality, james Henry, dim Yates, Chris
Henwooed, BanToth)

March 15— Bargaining Megting— Planning = [In sttendsnce: Paul Barner and Tim McKay)




March 30 — Bargalning Proposals Meeting = Go ovar proposais from subcommittess, organizing, 2ic. (In
sttendance: Paul Barner, Tim Mckay, Chris Henwood)

Aprll 5 = Bargaining Proposals Review — Begin thoraughly reviewing each of the 200+ proposals
submitted by the subcommittees. (In attendancer Paul Rarner, Tim Mckay, Chtis Henwaood, Michelle
McQuality, Doug Lape)

April 7= Mesting with Bargaining Subcommittee Chairs — Discuss propasals, QA (In attendance: Paul
Barner, Chris Henwood, Jim Yates, James Henry, Manny Peralta, Dan Tath, Doug Lape, Michelle
McQuality)

April 10 —USPS Financial Prasentation — (in attendance: Brian Ranfroe, Paul Barner, Korl Blalock Kellar,
Holly Feldman-Wisncek, Peter DeChiara, MichelleMcQuality, Im Sauber, Doug Lape, Jim Yates, Keith
Segular)

April 14 —Bargaining Prapasals Review —Continus thoroughly reviewing cach of the 200+ proposaly
‘submitted by the subcommittees. Frep for main table meetings o pass prepesats, (i attendance: Paul
Rarner, Tim McKay, Chris Henwaad, Michelie McQuality, Doug Lapa)

Aaril 17 = Brian bagins treatment,

Agrit 19— USPS Oparations Presentation— {In attendance: Paul Barner, Tim McKay, Jim Szuber, Korl
Bialock Keller, Holly Feldman - Wiencek, Doug Laps, Dan Toth, Jim Yates, Keith Secular, Michelle
MeQuality)

April 19— Collzctive Bargaining Mesting — Paul wanted to meet I the executive councll room after we
caturned from the USPS presentation. We met for the rest of the day to discuss collective bargalning
fdeas and strategy. (Inattondance) Paul Barnar, Tim McXay, Jim Yates, Chris Henwood, Doug Lape,
Michelle McQuality, Keith'Secular, Jim Sauber) '

April 20— Main Table Collective Bargaining Meeting with LISPS - Begin passing of bargaining proposals
Maet in EXC room-at NALC H@, (In attendance: Paul Barner, Tim Mekay, Jim Yates, Chris Henwoaod, Doug
Lape, Michelle McQuality, Keith Secular, USPS roprasentativas)

Apri| 27— Main Table Collective Bargaining Meoting with USPS = Cantinus the passing of batgalning
prapasals: Met in EXC room &1 NALC HQ (In attendance Paul Barnes, Jim Yates, Chris Henwood, Doug
Lape, Micheliz MeQuality, Keith Secular, USPS regrasentatives)

Aprll 28 = Bargaining Proposals Review - Cantinue thoroughly reviewing 2ach of the 200+ proposals
submittad by the subcommittess, Prep for main Sble meetings Lo pass proposals. {In attendanca: Paul
Barner, Chris Henwood, Michelle McQuatity, Doug Lape)

May 2 - Bargaining Proposals Review.—Continue thoraughly review|ng =3ch of the 200+ proposais
submittad by the subcommittass, Prep for main Ible meslings [0 pass propesals, (In attendancz: Paul
Barner, Chris Henwood, Michelle MeQuality, Doug Lape. Him Yates)

May 3 = Main Table Calleztive Bargaining Prep —(In attandance: Paul Barner, Tim McKay, Jim Yates,
Chiris Henwood, Doup Lape, Keith Secular)




May 3~ Main Table Collective Bargaining Meeting with USPS — Continue the passing of bargaining
proposals. Met (n EXC room at NALC HQL (In attendance: Paul Barner, Jim Yates, Chris Henwood, Doug
Lape, Michella McQuality, Kith Secular, USPS representatives)

My 5—Main Table Colipctive Bargaining Meating with LSPS — Continue the passing of bargaining
proposals. Met in EXC roam at NALC HQ (In attendance: Paul Barner, Jim Yates, Chris Hanwood, Boug
Lape, Michellz McQuality, Kith Secular, Manny Peralia. James Hanty, USPS reprasentatives)

Misy 9— Main Tabie Colizctive Bargaining Meeting with USPS - Cantinue the passing of bargaining
praposals. Met in EXC room at NALC HQ, {inattendance. Paul Barner, Tim McKay. Jim Yates, Chris
Henwood, Doug Lape, Michelle MeQuality, Keith Secular, USPS representatives)

May S— Interest Arbitration Planning = {In attendance; Gther than me 'm not 1005 sure)

May 12 = Collective Bargaining Meeting with Executive Council — Discuss collsctive bargaining ssues and
propasals. (In attendance: Executlve councll and staff)

May 15-20 — Hate| Bargaining Week = Met all week internally and with USPS representatives — (In
attendance: Paul Barner, famas Henry, Nicole Rhine, Mack Julion, Manny Peralta, Stephanie Stawart, Jim
Yates, Dan Toth, Fred Relando, Tim McKay, Michelle McQuality, Doug Laps, Thrle Henwood, KariBlalock
Keller, Jim Sauber, ¥eith Secular, Holly Feldman Wiericak)

May 24 - Internal Bargsining Megting — Recap fram hotel week, Blanning poing forward. —{In
attendance; Paul Barper, Tim McKay, Michalle McQuality, Chris Henwood)

June 5= Internal Bargaining Meeting - Praposal distussions — (In artendance: Paul Barner, Tim MeKay,
Michnlle McQuality, Daug Lape)

June 7 - ntrnal Bargalning Meeting = Propusal discussions — {In attendance: Paul Barner, Tim Mekay,
Michelle McQuality, Doug Lape, Chris:Henwood)

Juna 12— Interest Arbltration Discussion — (Inattendance: Jim Yates, Tim McKay, Kate Swearengen|

June 12 — Internsl Bargaining Megting ~ Proposal discussions— (in attendance: Paul Barner, Tim McKay,
Michelle MeQuality, Doug Lape, Chriz Henwood)

June 15= Interest Arbiteation Panal Witness Discussion - (in attendance: Jim Yatas, Tim MeKay, Doug
Lape)

June 20~ |ntgrhal Bargaining Meating —Progosal discussions = {In attendance: Paul Barner, Micheile
Mcuslity, Doug Lape, Chris Henwood)

June 26— Brlan returned to wark in the HQ bullding

June 28 — Interest Arbitration Pane| Witness Discussion — (in attendance: Jim Yates, Tim McKay, Boug
Lape, Kate Swearengen]

luly 6 — Internal Bargaining Meeting ~ Prapasal discussions — (In atterdance: Paul Barner, Michelte
McQuality, Doug Laga, Chrls Henwood)

July &= Proposal Discusaion with USPS {in attendance: Tim McKay and Joy Augustin, USPS}




July 7= Internat Bargaining Meeting — Proposal discussians — (In attendance; Paul Barner, Michellz
Mcduality, Chris Hanwood]

July 7 —Proposal Discussian with USPS - (in sttendance: Tim Mckay and Joy. Augustin, USPS)

July 11 — Collactive Bargalning Economic Update —{ln attendance: Brian Renfroe, Paul Barnar, Tim
MeKay, Holly Feldman-Wiencek, Keith Seculat, Korl Bislack Kellet, Jim Sauber, Jim Yatos)

July 12 = Collective Bargaining Economit Fallow-ug —[in attendance: Brian Renfroe, Tim McKay, Jim
Yates, Korl Bialock Keiler)

July 12 = Intarest Arbitration Prep Update - (Inattendance: Brian Renfroe, Paul Barmer, Tim Mekay, Jim
yares, Korl Blalock Keller, Peter DeChiafz, Holly Fetdman-Wiencek, lim Sauber, Keith Secular)

July 14— Internal Bargaining Maating — Broposal discussions— (In attandance: Brian Renfroe, Paul
Barner, Tim McKay, Kori Rlatock Keller, im Yates, Doug Lape, Michelle McQuatity, Chris Hanwood)

July 17— Internal Bargaining Meating —Proposal discussions - (In attendance, Brian Renfroe; Paul
Barnar, Tim Mckay, Kori Blalock Kétler, Jim Yates, Doug Lape, Michelle McQuality, Thris Henwoad)

July 18 - Interest Arbitration Panel Witness Discussion — {In atzendance: Jim Yates, Tim McKay, Boug
Lape)

July 14— Intarnal Bargaining Meating —Propasal discussions - (Inattendance: Paul Barnar, Tim McKay,
1im Yates, Doug Lape, Michelle McQuality, Thris Henwood)

July 27 = Interral Bargaining Meeting — Proposal discussions = (In attendance; Paul Barper, Tim McKay,
Jim Yates, Michelle McQuality, Chris Henwood)

July 31 = Interest Arbitration Panel Witness Discusgion = {In attendance: Jim Yates, T McKay, Doug,
Lape)
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Charge 2 (A): Conduct. Impaired driving after hours in a NALC owned vehicle.

In his rebuttal to the charge, President Renfroe takes the position that he was not
impaired while driving a NALC car on 9/12/2018 at 10:49 PM. He explained that after
work, he went to the Alibi for suppér. Brian said that he “was there for approximately one
and & halfto two hours. (He) had three or four drinks with dinner.” (Page 12 of his rebuttal
1o the charges) | have attached the Personnel Admitted at Doors Report for 9/12/2018.
(See Amachment) President Renfroe exited the NALC HQ building at 6:26 PM and
reentered that building to pick up his car at 10:32 PM, four hours later. He was at the Alibi
for a considerably longer period of time than he indicated. Thirteen minutes after he left
the building in his NALC car, he was pulled over by the police. President Renfroe claimed
he “was fine to drive and did not endanger anyone nor the vehicle | was driving.” (Page
12 of his rebuttal to the charges) The information provided in the police report completely
undermines that assertion. His own words as recorded in that report demonstrate that he
knew he shouldn't have been driving the car.

Officers Possinger, Naples and Koch were driving southbound when they hiewrd
excessive honking that was emanating from the red Chevrolet Traverse that (then) EVP
Renfroe was driving. He was honking at two bicyclists directly in front of his vehicle. On
page 13 of his rebuttal statement to the charge. President Renfroe explained that they had
suddenly pulled in front of him before making a left-hand turn onto Massuchusetts
Avenue. The police report does not indicate that the officers felt the bicyclists were myany
danger. EVP Rentroe continued northbound on 2™ Street NE. passing the officers afier
which an unknown female flagged them down and stated that she believed the driver of
the red Chevrolet was intoxicated. With this information, the officers tumed around and
attempted to eatch up to EVP Renfroe’s vehicle: While doing so, Officer Possinger
observed the Traverse cross the double yellow lines in the 600 block of 2" Street NE,
correct back into the proper lane and continue northbound. When the vehicle entered the
700 block of 2" Street NE, the vehicle again crossed the double yellow lines and was
driving northbound in the southbound lane of travel. At this point, Officer Possingar noted
the risk posed to public safety and initiated his vehicle's emergency equipment. causing
the Chevrolet to again correct into the proper lane. Officer Possinger then used the cruiser
speaker to instruct EVP Renfroe to pull his vehicle to the curb, (See Attachment: includes
the police report and court documents related to President Renfroe’s case)

On Page 13 of his rebuttal statement to this charge, President Renfroe stuted that
due to the nature of the street in the 600 block of 2™ Street NE, he deliberately drove over
the center lane as he and others do every day when no traffic is oncoming, He made a
similar argument regarding the configuration of the street in the 700 block of 2™ Street
NT, asserting that everyone drives over the center lane to ensure @ safe distance from both

1




sides of the street. It's important 10 remember that these avents occurred very late in the
evening (almost 11:00 PM) when it was unlikely that there was much traffic heading
suuthbound on 2™ Street NE. Additionally, I took the same route on 20 Grreet NE between
Massachusetts Avenue NE and [ Street NE two times in the middle of the day and did not
ohiserve vehicles crossing the yellow lines as President Renfroe described.

The officers approached the vehicle. Tn his statement, Officer Possinger nmed that he
immediately smelled the odor of an alcohol beverage emanating from EVP Renfroe.
Additionally, he noted EVP Renfroe's speech was slurred. At this point, the officers
requested that EVP Renfroe step out of the vehicle. Officer Naples noticed that he was
swaying while standing and had bloodshot eyes. The officer wanted 10 conduct the
Qtandard Field Sobriety Tests, The report states that EVP Renfroe admitted that he
probably would niot pass the tests and that he probably should not have driven home. He
indicated he needed an attorney before he would consent to the tests. It is, of course, his
right to do s0. The officers then placed him under arrest for Driving Under the Influence
and transported him 1o the First District for eriminal processing. At the station, Officer
Naples provided EVP Renfroe with the Implied Consent Form and asked him 1o take a
breathalyzer. He refused to do so without legal representation, which is hisg right to do.
Again, while speaking with Brian at the station, Officer Naples smelled an odor of an
alcoholic beverage coming from him. The police report provides sufficient information 1o
conclude that EVP Renfroe was driving under the influence of alcohol,

There is a law called Implied Consent. Some version of it is on the books in all fifty
states and the District of Columbia, Police officers are required to apprise defendants of
the provisions of the law. Essentially, it states that by virtue of the fact that you are driving
a vehicle, you automatically consent to taking a chemical test (breath, blood or urine) if
an officer pulls you over and suspects you are driving under the influence. You can, of
course, refuse to do so, but there are consequences. One is that your driver’s license may
be suspended for one year, In this instant case, the police report notes that Oftficer Naples
provided EVP Renfroe with the Implied Consent Form. | spent quite a lot of time trying
to understand how this law would apply in this situation, Finally, | conmtacted the DC
Pepartment of Motor Vehicles via email on August 25, My question to them was “Ifyou
are arrested for a DUI, refuse the breathalyzer test, and settle in court for a diversion
program, is your license suspended for the one year duration of the program; and must
you retake the writlen test und the road test in order 1o have it reinstated?™ J F-12543 (DU
Department of Motor Vehicles) responded 10 me on August 2&. “Yes, it will be suspended
while you &re in the program. Yes. you will have to start over if convicted of the DU
Even if vou plead guilty you will «till have to wait one year and then start the process
over.” The relevant part of this answer is that EVP Renfroe's driver's license was




suspended while he was In the diversion program. (See Attachment for the email thread)
1 have also provided the Car Mileage Summary for CY: 2018 for Brian Renfroe’s car, (See
Attachment) It shows that he was driving the car throughout the time he was in the
diversion program. Of course, there are serious penalties for driving in DC ona suspended
license. For our purposes, if he had had an accident during this timeframe, NALC could
have faced serious liability, |

EVP Rentroe was charged with Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol ora Drug
and Operating a Vehicle While Impaired. He was assigned an initial court date of October
11. 2018, Ultimately, on his attorney’s recommendation and the court’s approval, EVP
Renfroe entered diversion through & deferred seritencing agreement. This procedure
required him to plead guilty. The sentencing was then deferred, and the defendant was
allowad 1o withdraw the guilty plea and nolle the case if he completed all the conditions
of the agreement. Diversion agreements generally run from six months 1o one year. His
agreement was set up for the latter. EVP Renfroe successfully completed the diversion
agreement, On 12/20/2019, Charge £1: Driving under the influence of Alcohol or a Drug
was dismissed. After five years, the arrest will be expunged from his record. That will
happen this vear. The requirement that the public record must be maintained tor five years
is the only reason this DUI was discovered.

Fartunately, in this case, there were no injuries or damage 10 the vehicle, Obviously,
though, when someone is driving under the influence of alcohol, the chances that injuries
or damage 1o the vehicle may occur are greatly increased, as is the potential liability for
the Union. That's why NALC has a policy that all drivers of NALC cars must abide by. 1
have enclosed a copy of that policy, which T was provided by the Director of Human
Resources, Ken Raker, 1 states, in relevant part.

Driving under the influence of drugs or aleohol is prohibited.

All traffic violations and accidents (whether at fault or not) must be inmediately reported
to NALC Humin Resources and if applicable. a police report must he provided.

This policy was sent to all NBAs, with a Ce: o Fred Rolando. Brian Renfroe and Judy
Willoughby on August 2, 2018, (See Attachment) By his own admission, when President
Renfroe was EVP, he did not report his DUI to anyone at NALC. Additionally, everyone
| interviewed during this investigation mdicated that they had never heard of this DUI
until they read the charges: EVP Brian Renfroe definitely violated this policy.
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SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
CCN #: 18153941
Arrest Number: 011834431
GERSTEIN AFFIDAVIT
District of Columbia
Vs
RENFROE, BRIAN LEE

Gificer Passlnger, Scott, CAD# 10643, personally sppeared on 09/12/281%

gndmdetpmky for making a faise statement, sot forth the below xialemen! regarding (e named defendant as fue and/or a3 based upon

information /e belioves to be true, and that the events oocarred in the Dismet of Columbla.

The event occurred o 09/12/2018 ut approxumately 12:49 a1 SENATE SQUARE, 201 | STREET NE, WASHINGTON, DC 20002

BWC Activated by Officer Possinger, S, Officer Naples, D., Officer Kuch, D., and Sergeant Nelsowm, 1.

On Wednesday, September 12, 2018, whlle in full uniforr, utilizing esil sigo Robbery Suppression 7 and Scout Car |,
Officer Possinger, Officer Naples and Officer Koch were driving southboond in the 500 hlack of Ind Street Northenst
, Washington, D.C.

At approximately 3244 hours, while driving southbound on 1nd Street Northeast, Officer Possinger heard an
unknows vehicle sxcensively hoaking near his vehicle. After arriving at the intersection of 2nd & Massachusctis
Avenue Northeast, Officer Possinger realized that a red In color Chevrolat Traverae, facing northbound ut the
intersection on 204 Strest, wes honking st two bicyclists directly ln front of the vehicle. The bicyclists then turned
westbound {nto the 100 block of Massachusetts Avenue Northeast and the Chevrolet Traverse continued traveling
porshbound on 2nd Street. After the Chevrolat Traverse passed the Officers, 8n unlown white female flagged down
Officer Possinger and stated (hat she believed the driver of the red Chevrolet wus infoxicated.

Af that poine, Officer Posstager nirned his vehlcle arownd and artempted to enteh up to the Chevroicd Traverse,
While catching up to the vehicle, Officer Posainger ehserved the Traverse cross the double ycllow linez la the 600
de&MNmLmvmmﬂwmﬂuﬁmﬁmmmﬂhMOmthcnhkhuteudme
700 diock of 2nd smmuommmmmmwmmu)wwm-nwmdm; porthbound in
the southbound tane of fravel. Reaficing (he risk to public safety, Officer Passinger initinted ull pmergency equipment
on his vebicle to conduct s traflic step ou the vehicle, After initiating the emergracy equipment, the Chevrolat
qummtxmoﬂad&lemNorthwt.Ofﬂmemm utilized the cruiser
speakes to Instroct ueddvumpulluth:rlghlddeoﬂhmdmy.mctsuroul Travorse bearing D.C. tags
DN2310 then pulled to the curb in the 200 black of T Stresi Northeast,

mew.uwmmmwmawmmm.omrrmmww himself xod
explained the reason far the traffic stop to D1 (Rafroe,BrluLaDOBMilma.wbomhopmm of the
vehielz. Officer Possioger Immediately ws able to smel) the odor of an alcoholic beverags eminaling from Defendant
Renfroe's pecson. Additionally, Defendant Reniroe's speech was siurred, Officer Possinger questionzd |f Defeadant
Renfroe had suy alcobollc beverages, to whick he respanded “T hiad a couple of beers like an hour age..at The ALLI".

At which point, Officers requested that Defenduni Renfroe stap out of the velicle. Officer Napies then explatned to
Defendant Reniros thit be would be conducting the Standard Field Sobriety Tests. Officer Naples noticed that
Defendant Renfroe was swaying while standing and had blesdshot syss. While ypesking to Defendant Renfroe, it
became evident that the Defendant was hasitant m participated in SFSTs. While speaking with the Defenduat, he
sdusitted that he probably would not pazs the tests and that he probably should ot have driven home, After over five
minutes of discasing the Standard Fiald Sobristy Tests with Defendant Renfroe, Defendant Reafroc smred that he
mummnmmmumﬂsnummgo&mmmmuw
srrest for Driving Under the Influence. The Defendant was thern transported to the First District for criminal

processing.
Defendant Reufroe was identifisd by » District of Columbia Deiver's Permit ai Renfroz, Brian DOE 47/1980,

g lafl




At the First District, Officer Naples actempted 10 obtain chemical spacimens from Defendant Renfroe. After having
tbehanCcmmFomtowlln.oeftnhntkonfrocnfundﬁwdxmwwedmmunﬁhmAptnwhih
speaking to Defendant Ronfroe at the First District, Officer Naples was sbis to smell an odor of su zicobolic beverage
coming from Defendant Renfree.

Defendant Renfroe was iisued NOI £382578940 for Fulling to Keep In Proper Lane.

POSSINGER, SCOTT (19/1372018) ESIGNATURE ANDERSON, SETH / 6402 (09/1372018) E-SICNATURE
Salice Officer Withest . Assicant Atigrmey Lenarsi a7 the Diveict of Colume:s
POSSINGER, SCOTT / 10643 ANDERSON, BETH [ b401
Trinted Name | CADS Prited Nmte of Witness / Depury
Cletk

Toe forgemy staement wis made wider pautity of srminal grasesution aand passabmand (2 flve satymens puisannt 2o 2.C Tode 22-483

be 2ot




Superior Court of the District of Columbia
CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
INFORMS THE COURT THAT WITHIN THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA:

RENFROE, BRIAN
NAME LEE FDIDE 734796 DOB  4/7/1980 SEX Maile

ADDRESS 300 L STREET NE, 603, WASHINGTON, D.C.

PERMIT # ARREST# 01183431  [IDCTNF DCPS4758R  TAG#
onorabout _September 12, 2018
@ 201 [STREET NE WASHINGTON, D C.

DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL OR A DRUG: did operate or was in physical control of
any vehicle in the Districu: (1) while intoxicated, or (2) while under the influence of alcohol or drug or any
combination thereof in violation of D.C Code § 50-2206. 11 (2013), for which & penalty is provided in D.C
Code § 50-2206.13, D.C. Code § 50-2206.17, and D € Code § 50-2205.18 (2013)

OPERATING A VEHICLE WHILE IMPATRED, did operate or wes in physical control of any vehicls m the
District while impaired by the cansumption of alcoho! or any drug or any combination thereof in violation of
D.C Code § 50-2206.14 (2013), for which » penalty (s provided in D.C. Code § 30-2206.15 (2013)

DATE _October 3. 2018 et - Pive

- Mclissa Shear
Assistant Attomey Gensml
Distriet of Calumbia

COURT DATE 11172018

REPORTED BY Possmger DIST=  let Distnet BADGE &

COL  Citation Release LOCKLRE ¢ D WARRANT

eon [ HAZMAT [] zy (7]







Case Detais Dttt ot Conumss 4 Suparior Coull LI caay

12018 CTF 014630 District of Columbia vs. RENFROE, BRIAN LEE JB

]

Cane Type
Traffe

Cane Statua
Glosed

File Dota
10a2018

Statun Date
10472018

Next Event

Allinformation | Parry -Evemt | Docsmt  Ressipr  Qispositian |

_ Party Information B -
RENFROE, BRIAN LEE
- Dafendant (Cim
» | Disposit [ Alias
» | Diap Doate Party Attorney
- « | AomMey

» IMYKYTLK JAY

"Events

DateTime  Legation  Type Result Evunt ludge
109172010 0030 AM  Courtroom 120 Arrsghimart - Citater Heanng e d NOT ADRIENNE

02720181000 AM  Courtroom 120  Aecanminment of Counsa Datenss Counsal Unsvasabis  HOT! ADRIENNE
U27/2018 1000 AWM Coutroom 120 Status Heanag Change of Flas 1o Guity NOTI ADRIENNE

192019 090 AM  Courtrocm 120 Delsrrad Seniencing Rewsw  Hearng Heid B SESHOLRI JOSEPM E
1274072018 06 30 AN Courtroom 120 B:imm-Senismmg Ravew C-nmmecs— No: & BESHOURI JOSEPH E

| Docket Information
| pata Docket Tuxt

JI0E/2040 Gharge Filed Chargs 1 Driving Unase the Infilencs ol Aleahe or & Dreg
Crarga 2° Operating o Vehicte Whiis impaired

tcuowom Gerstamn AMaavi Filea S

\10103/201& Gorstein Aflsavit Filed

| 10mar2018 Evant Scheduied
Event Armgnmant « Titation
Cats \OW1V2018  Time. 830 am
Judga NOTT ADRIENNE  Location Dourram 120

nTtna eascesh Aaemin yoviwartpsysearch page ) MestunzoMl 2O UM 28 SwwEs LTy BWHI Koo L ERmrplibLarizchiva GEAYTNOR Page 1ot &










A3 AT M

Case Detalls - Digtiist of Columble Supeno! Court

lolows.

Dismisssd  MNoits
“BESHOURIL JOSEPH E  Localon Colitioo 170
JAY MYKYTIUK (Anomey) an tahall of BRIAN [ ET= RENTRGE
Participant(s) Judgs JOSEPH £ BESHOURI

017102020 Gase Disnosed » Nolle Diversan

Dala~sa=t Cnmnal)

Reseipt Numbet Racciot Date Rece=ived From ert
H1IW2019 RENFROE BRIAN LEE 310000

287702
Total Tots Total
$100 00

Case Dlsposﬁon
Disposition Date Case Judge
BESHOURI JOSEPH E

122024 18

Diamissed Nolls-Divarson

nitEs (MACCRss GEIN It gov/aazuesa/EEaIcn Eagw F1VeStulsam m‘:lnrm::.:5wb;rrv:-:.~m: YO QA IN Do Giit 27N jretiney RSV ITHNERLW Paye & ul




W02, 2 ALPM ATAT Yanooe Mail - (DG Gepartment af Motor Venleles| e, your support request | am lpoking far infarmation G4 Now the iImplied

|DC Department af Motor Vehicles] Re: your support request | am looking for infermation
an how the implied cansent faw is applied for a DUI arrest when the defendant refuses a
breathalyzer test.

Feee DC Dapartment of Motor Vehicles (suppon@dcdimy rendesk com)
daucaweirit st net

Date Monday, August 28 2023 4f 0818 AM EDT

# - Prgss type-your regly above thie ling -#%
Good Day Michas! Wair,
vaur DEOMY gusstion/reduest |56293) has heah soived of closea,

It you bave any additianal questions ar cormmenite reldted (@ thin cagquiest, yau may reply Yo s emall Lo
rEQpen ths matisn

Thank YOu,

DC DMV

JF-12543 (DC Department of Motor Vehicles)
AU 28, 2020, 8 1 8AM ERT

ves, |t wlll be suspended while you are in the pragram,
ves, you will have to start over if convicted of the DUL

Even If you plead gullty you will still have to wait one year and then start the
Process over,

Best,

Michael Weir
aug 2%, 1043, % 33°FM EDT

If you are arrested for a DUT, refuse the bresthalyzer test, and sattle (A court fora diverslen pragram,
s your llcense suspendad for the une year duration of the program, and, must you retake the written
test and the road tast In arder to have it reinstated?

Michael Weir-
Augh 24 2023, 536 PM ERT

RIS AL
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Fwd: YOUR ACTION REQUIRED: NALC-owned Vehicle Use Policy

Flunte  Ken Raker [mkar@nalc org)
[ deucewsiiDatt nat

Dale  Tuesday, August 8 2023 at 01:54 PM COT

HI Mike. per request, please see the attached palicy regarding reporting maving violation procaeduren, as they retals (0
company-owned vehicles

Pleasy lat me knaw If thare are any questians of if you nead sdditional information, Thank you
Kan

From; Ken Raksr <rakeri@nalc.arg»

Sent: Thurday, August 2, 2018 5:51 AM

To: All NBAs <alinbas@nalc.org>

Ce: Fred Rolando <ROLANDOSNALL ORG>; Brian Renlroe <RENFROE@NALC.ORG>! Judy Willoughby ewillovghby&nalc.org>
Subject: YOUR ACTION REQUIRED: NALC-owned Vehicle Use Policy

Good morning,

As you know, NALC-owned vehicles are provided for business purposes; howaver, commuting and other
personal use is permitted. Drivers are covered under NALC ‘s Insurance pelicy in all normal situations, as it
relatzs to llahility, damage, and |oss, when used to conduct business. Drivers are not personally covered
while commuting or using the vehiclas for other non-business. Therefore, each driver should annually
provide proot of coverage of personal insurance (or Drive Other Car insurance, commenly called “DOC") if
using the vehicle to commute or for other non-business / personal use, Without such personal coverage,

you can be personally exposed to great financial risk.

Please see theattached policy which highlights the guldelines to be followed when driving @ NALC-owried vehicle,
ircluding our request to provide proof of coverage of personal insurance if using the vehicle to commute or for
other non-business. We ask that you provide us with a current copy of your proof of insurance card, and return &
completed copy the attached policy no latar than next Friday (8/10) Simply mail to my attention, fax
(202.662.2815), or emall a pdf copy to this email addrass by 8/10.

as:always, If you need additional time to complete this request or have any questions, please let me or Judy know.
Thank you!

Regards,

Ren

Ken Rakar | Directar af Human Resources
Nartonal Association ol Latter Carriers

100 Indiana Avenye NW | Washington, DC 20001-2144
Direct (202) 662-2854 | Fax (202) 6622815

N NALC Vehicle Use Guidetines final pdf




NALC OWNED VEHICLE USE

NALC-owned vehicles are provided for business purposes; however, commuting and other
personal use is permitted. Drivers are covered under NALC's insurance policy in all normal
situations, as It relates to liability, damage, and loss, when used to conduct business. Drivers
are not personally covered while commuting or using the vehicles for other non-business:
Therafore, each driver should annually provide proof of coverage of personal insurarnce (or
Drive Other Car insurance, commonly called "DOC”) if using the vehicle to commute or for
other non-business. Without such personal coverage, you can be personally exposed to great
financial risk.

In addition to the above, it 1S NALC policy:

Driving under the Influence of drugs or alcohol is prohibited.
Driver must have:a valid driver’s license
The person assigned to the vehicle will not use or permit the use of the vehicle ina
negligent or improper manner or |n violation of any law.
o All traffic violations and accidents (whether at fault or not) must be immediately
reported to NALC Human Resources and If applicable, a police report must he provided.
s Maintenance is the respansibility of the person assignad to the vehicle (you must insura
the maintenance Is performed as scheduled by the manufacturer and It s a
reimbursable expensa you submit).

Below please fill out the necessary insurance inforimation:

Insurance Company Nama:
Insurance Company Contact Phone Number:
Insurance Agent (if applicable):
License No /State Date of Birth

(Pimase attach a current copy of your proof of insurance card)

Print Nams Signature

Signature certifies that you hava the necessary vehicle insurance to drive @ NALC-owned vehicie for
personal use and that you will adhere 1o the guidslines set forth above







Charge 2 (B): Circulating false or Misleading Statements about a NALC
Officer: Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential
Information about an employee matter.

As noted in the charging document, rumors apparently started to circulate af
Region 1's Training, which was conducted from March 30 to April 1, regarding Vice
President James Henry having inappropriate contact with female headquarters’ staft.
| asked NBA Keisha if she had heard anything at the training, and she indicated she
had not. The alleged allegations in question originated at the Marieta, GA Executive
Council meeting in January (23-26). One female staff member casually mentioned
to President Brian Renfroe an incident that had occurred between her and the Vice
President, Ultimately, two female staffers said they had experienced issues, though
neither of them filed official complaints.

The charge referenced several sources having asserted that President Renfroe
had informed them of alleged complaints prior to the regional training at San Diego,
CA. My investigation determined that six former and current national officers, and
one letter carrier staffer were contacted by President Renfroe with this information,
When | questioned the President about why he did this, he explained that he was just
seeking advice from several sources on how to proceed. | questioned each of the
individuals that President Renfroe had contacted. Each of them agreed that they had
been contacted, but each of them also stated that they had not shared the information
with anyong else. Nonetheless, the rumors did surface and began to take on a life of
their own.

There was a significant gap in time between when alleged inappropriate
behavior was brought to President Renfroe’s attention, and stories began Lo circulate
at the Region | Training regarding that behavior.,.about two months. During this
time, no appropriate action was taken with Human Resources to address the issue.

The charging officer, Director of City Delivery Chris Jackson, told me that he
was contacted by a former branch president from Region | regarding the allegations.
By this time, Chris was already aware of them, but he had not told VP James Henry
about them. He asked the former branch president not to bother VP Henry with this
information while he was on vacation. He did anyway. This was sometime at the
beginning of April. This accounts for the gap in time between when the Vice
President learned of the alleged allegations being made public and his request to
speak to President Renfroe about them.




The email thread between President Renfroe and Vice President Henry, which
occurred between April 10, 11 and 12, is part of the documentation associated with
this charge. It is quite clear from the language and tone of the Vice President’s emails
that he was very upset and wanted to address this matier a5 soon as possible.
President Renfroe indicated that he was in meetings all afternoon on the 10" and had
to leave early on the 11" (due to a migraine), so he was unable to meet, He offered a
meeting after the resident officers' meeting on the 127, but VP Henry had a very
important doctor’s appointment at that time. However, since the resident officers’
meetings usually occur in the afternoon, the Vice President offered to meet in the
moming or, if that was not possible, he would make a special trip back to the building
later that afternoon to meet, Ultimately, the meeting did not occur, and VP Henry
then approached EVP Paul Barner to address his concerns, (See Attachment)

Paul immediately turned the matter over to the Director of Human Resources,
Ken Raker. Ken expeditiously conducted an investigation, interviewing everyone
involved within three 1o four days of being notified of the issue. On April 18, EVP
Barner announced the results of said investigation at the same Executive Council
meeting when he announced that President Brian Renfroe was taking a Leave of
Absence. He said Human Resources had determined that the facts did not exactly
support the allegations.

Based on my investigation of this charge. it became clear to me that this matter
had been handled improperly, to the detriment of all the concerned parties. | spoke
with Human Resources Manager Ken Raker to determine if there was a policy in
place for reporting allegations of inappropriate behavior, and if the procedures
contained therein had been followed properly. He indicated that there was a policy,
and it had not been followed in this case. It is found on everyone’s Dayforce and is
attached to the training module which is rolled out every two to three years. All
employees and officers are required to read it and sign off that they have done so.
The policy was recently updated in January of 2021, President Renfroe was certainly
aware of the policy and its guidelines for what must be done when someone reported
an allegation. He was involved in the update of the policy and had an additional role
to play in the application of the policy.

H.R. Director Ken Raker provided me with a copy of NALC's Policy
Prohibiting Workplace Harassment and Discrimination and  Sexual
Harassment Complaint Form. | have included a copy with this report, (See
Attachment) | have also included emails from April of 2021 which conlirm EVP




Brian Renfroe's receipt of the policy and procedures, and his position as the one to
whom the individual reporting the alleged misconduct can appeal a resolution they
do not agree with. (See Attachment) Policy item number 7 is relevant to the issue at
hand. It reads, in part:

“All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected
harassment or discrimination, observe what may be harassing or discriminatory behavior
or for any reason suspect that sexual harassment is occurring, are required (o report such
conduct o Ken Raker, Nahid Sepehri or Jeannay Greene.”

| have also included an email between Paul Barner and Brian Renfroe, dated
April 16, 2021, which confirms Brian's receipt of the policy und the procedures. (See
Attachment)

These procedures were put in place to proteet the privacy ol both the
accuser(s) and the accused. Had this policy been followed, we would not be here
addressing this charge today. Given the fact that the accused in this matier has now
retained an attorney, the charging officer’s concern that the Union may be exposed
to possible litigation and liability has an increased level of validity.

Additionally, in President Renfroe’s rebuttal to this charge, he indicated tht
“aver the course of several weeks (now months) in 2023, multiple headquarters stail
members communicated concerns and allegations to me regarding what they
perceived as inappropriate behavior by VP Henry:" (Page 9 of President Renfroe’s
rebuttal to the charges) 1 spoke with H.R. Director Ken Raker regarding this issue.
He indicated that he and his staff had never been notified of any additional
allegations.

There are two other issues related to this charge that | believe are important to
address. First of all, it has come to my attention that due to how this particular
situation was handled and the resulting fallout (publicity) for the parties involved,
there are women who are saying they will not report any type of inappropriate
behavior or harassment they may encounter in the future. This would result in a
hostile workplace environment. Secondly, there were two different ways that the
issue in this case was characterized. |); that inappropriate touching was involved:
and 2): that a more aggressive physical interaction was involved, To be clear, neither
of these two options is acceptable; but the latter one strikes people as being more
egregious. The latter one was the one taken to Human Resources for review.




| located seven people whom President Renfroe had contacted about the
allegations. Five said he characterized the issue the first way: two said he
characterized it the second way. In his rebuttal (o this charge, President Renfroe said:
“The idea that T would make this up and spread it is ridiculous, On the contrary, |
wanted to handle this appropriately and as quietly as possible to respect the privacy
of everyone involved.” (Page 9 of President Renfroe’s rebuttal to the charges) Again,
had President Renfroe immediately contacted Human Resources as required in the
NALC policy, he would have handled it appropriately, quietly and respectfully for
everyone involved. He chose not to do so. Instead. President Renfroe initiated
discussions with seven people, purportedly for advice as to how the matter should
be handled, rather than go through the proper channels of which he was fully aware.
By doing this he left the door open for confidential employee matters (o potentially
spread throughout the membership. Had President Renfroe abided by the policy, we
may have gotten the same result in terms of Human Resources’ assessment of the
complaint. The difference is the privacy of both the accusers and the accused would
have been preserved. And trust in the systém would not have been so utterly
compromised.




Thank you! Immensely appreciated! 'll standby to hear back fram you
Have 3 fantastic rest of vour day/!

James D, Henry

NALC Vice Presidant

100 Indiana Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20001
Dffice - (202} 662-2842
Call - (718) 270-7316

From: Brian Renfroe <RENFROEENALC DRG>

Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 5:13 PM

To: James D, Henry < NALLC ORG>

Cc: Paul Barner <Bamer@NALC.ORG>; Julion, Mack <mijulion@nalcbr11 osg»
Subject: Re; Request Meeting; Regarding Accusations

| was In meatings a!l atterncon, I'll 12t you know a good tima tomarrow

Brian L. Renfroa

President

National Associatian of Letter Carriers, AFL-CIQ
100 Indizana Ave NW

Washington, DC 20001

On Apr 10, 2023, at 4:42 PM, James O Henry cHenty@ngdlc.org» wrote

Brian,

| came 10 your office today at approximately 1 30 PM ta meet with you, but you wers
not there. Howsaver, I'm requesting 2 meeting with you ASAF regarding very concsming
sllegations that 've receved from the field regarding my conduct. |f you are avaitable
today, please iet me know an | will come up to your office and would |Ike 1o have Mack
lullan presgnt. If you are not available today, pleass advise as to when you are avallable
1o meet as expeditiously as possible.

Your prompt response and attention to this matter Is greatly appreciated.
Thank you,

lames 0. Henry

NALC Vice President

100 indlana Avenue, NW
Washington, C 20001
Office - (202) 662-2842
Cell « (714) 270-73156

.




James D. Han:z

From: James 3 Henry

Sent: Maonday, April 10, 2023 515 PM

To: Brian Renfros

Co Paul Barner, Julion, Mack, Mack Julion
Subject: RE Request Meeting Regarding Accusations

Thank you! Immensely sppreciated| 1l standby 10 rear back from you.
Have 3 fantastic rast of your day|

ames D, Henry

NALC Vice Pres|dent

100 Indizna Avenus, NW
Washington, DC 20001
Office - (202) 562-2842
cell - (714) 270-7316

From: Brian Renfroe <RENFROE@NALC ORG>

Sent: Monday, Aprif 10, 2023 5:13 PM

Ta: lames D. Henry cHenry @NALC.ORG>

Cc: Paul Barner <Barner@NALC.ORG>; Julion, Mack <m|ulion@naichr]1.0rg>
Subject: Re; Request Masting: Regarding Accusations

I was in meetings all sfternoon. ('l let you know a good time LOmorrow

Brian L. Renfroe

President

National Association of Letter Carriers, AFL-CIO
100 Indiana Ave NW

Washington, DC 20001

On Apr 10, 2023, 3t 4:42 PM, James D Menry <Henrv@nale srg» wrote!

Brian,

| catne toyour office today at approximately 1:30 PM [0 meet with you, but you were not

there. However, I'm requesting a meeting with you ASAP regarding very concerning allegations that f've.
received trom the field regarding my conduct  |f you are available today, pleass let me know an | will
come up to your office and would like to have Mack Jullon present. If you are not available 1odasy,
plesse advise 35 1o when you are available to meet as expeditiously as possible.

Your prompt fesponse and attenton to this matter is greatly appreciated
Thank you,

fames D Heory







James D, Henz

From: James [0, Hanry

Sent: Wednasday, April 12, 2023 11:34 AM

To: Brian Renfroe

Ce: Paul Barner, Julion, Mack

Subject: RE: Request Mesting: Regarding Accusations
Brian,

| hadn't received a response fram you regarding my requested meaeting ta occur today. However, you Indicated in you
pravious emall thet we could meat todayaftar the officers mesting. | will beat the doctar’s officeat tha lime and am
degarting today at 11:30 AM, However, as | stated in my response (o you on yestarday, the Issue at hand is ultra
impartant and of the utmost urgency. Therefore, I'm willing to return sftar my doctor appolntment today to meet with
you. |anticipate that it would be approximataly 4:30 - 5:00 PM . Plzase advise if the sfarementioned can and will be
accommodated.

I'm not comfortable with allowing the concerns | have to discuss with you to 20 unaddressed pass today, It s in regards
to aliegations of my conduct and | view It as having and adverse impact an my reputation and carear

Please advise

fames D Hanry

NALC Vice President

100 Indiana Avenue, NW
Washington, OC 26001
Offica - (202) 662-2842
Cell - (714} 270-7316

From: Brian Renfroe <RENFROE@NALC.ORG>

Sent: Monday, Aprii 10, 20232 513 PM

To: iames D. Henry <Henry@NALC ORG>

Cc: Paul Barner <Barnar@NALCORG>; Julion, Mack <mjulion@nalcbril.org>
Subject: Re: Request Megting; Regarding Accusations

| was In meetings all afternoon. 'l et you knaw a good time temarrow

8rian L. Ranfros

President

National Association of Letter Carrigrs, AFL-CIO
100 Indiana Ave NW

Washington, DC 20001

On Apr 10, 2023; 3t 4:42 P\, fames . Henry <Hsnoy@nale org> wrols:

8rian,




James D, Hmz

From: lames D. Menry

Sent; Tussday, Aprll 13, 2023 2:36 PM

To: Brian Renfrop

Cc Paul Bamar; Julion, Mack;, Mack Juhon
Subject: RE Request Mesting, Regarding Accusations
Srian,

I'm disappointed that we will not be able to meel today as anticipated. | truly hope that you began 1o feel better and
have a speedy r2covary.

| have 3 doctor's appointment with a specialist tomorrow 12 APR 2023 in Bowie, MD at 1,00 PM that I've been waiting
for almost 4 months. | will be here tomorrow morming until 11:30 AM, | must express the utmost urgency in meating
with you since you are the President, 25 my reputation and livalihood (5 under attack.

I$ it possible we can meet In the moming? | don't care what time, if you say 500 AM I'm good because it’s that
important to me and the matter needs (o be addrassed sooner than rignt now and faster than immediataly,

Please advise.

James D. Henry

NALC Vice President

100 indlana Avenue, NW
Washingtor, DC 20001
Office - (202) 662-2842
Call - (714) 270-7316

From: Brian Renfroe <RENFROE@NALC.ORG>

Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 12:06 PM

To: James D. Henry <Henry@NALC.ORGS

Cc: Paul Barner <Barner@NALC ORG>; Jullon, Mack <mjulisn@nalctirll orgs; Mack lulion <julion@nalc.org>
Subject: Re: Request Meating; Regarding Accusations

lamies,

Unfortunately | have a migraine so I'm going home shortly, Let's talk after the residents meeting tomorrow. My
apologias,

Brian L. Renfroe

President

National Association of Letter Carriars, AFL-CIO
100 Indlanzg Avenue NW

Washington, DC 20001

OnApr 10, 2023, at 515 PM, Jamas D, Henry <HenrvEnalc oig> wrote:




| came to your offica taday at approximately 1:30 PM to meet with yuu, but you were not

there. However, I'm raquesting @ maeting with you ASAF regarding very concarning allegations that ['ve
racetved from the field regarding my condict. It you re available today, pleasz let me know an | will
come Up to your office and would like to have Mack Julion present, Hf you are not svailable today,
pleass advise as to when you are avallable te meet as expeditiously as possible.

Yaur prompt response and attention 1a this matter is greatly sppreciated
Thank you,

James O, Hanty

NALC Vice President

100 Indiana Avanug, NW
Washington, DC 20001
Office - {202) 662-2842
Cell - (714) 270-7316




Paul Barner
”

From: Ker Raker

Sent: Thursday. ‘August 3, 2023 10:18 AM

To: Paul Barnet

Subject: Fwd: Harssament Policy updated

Attachments: NALC 2 - Policy Pronibiting Warkpiaze Harassmment and Discaminatien w_ Cemplamt

Farm. Apr 2023 doex

Wi Faul, please see the attachad policy per request, It s found on both Dayforce, aa part of our onboarding, and attached
to the training module (which will be sent te you under separate cover), |t was reezntly modified only to Incude
Jeannay aspart of the HR team. Please let me know If you have any quastions. Thanks!

kan



Harassment Complaint Form

Nutional Associntion of Letter Carriers, AFL-CIO ("NALC™) ts committed 1o creating o work
environment free from sexunl haragsment. and hurussment and discrimination hased on race.
calor. religion, creed, sex. nationdl orgin, citizenship, age, disability, genetic predisposition or
catrier status. marita] statps, sexual orientution. uniformed service or any other charscteristics
protected by-applicable law. This harssment §s legal and strictly prohibited, whether
committed by supervisory or ron-supervisory personnel, munsgement, or third pariies, such as
vendars, Fyery supervisor, munager and employee 18 responsible for complying with NALC's
Policy Prohibiting Workplisee Hurassment and Diserimination.

I keeping with this poticy, NALC reaffimas that it will not tolerate uny torm of harsssment or
discrimination on any ol the bases listed above, Should uny supervisor, manager or employee
he subject to, or become knowledgeable ubout, workplace harassment or disetimination, NALC
has established o formal procedurne (or reporting misconduct, This procedure 1s intended 10
supplement—not 1o replace or supersede—the other procedures avaitable to supervisors,
managers and employees under npplicable laws or acts,

Policy:

|, Coveraze: NALC's Policy Prohibiting Workplace Harassment and Discrimination upplies
to all supervisors, mansgers and employees, applicants, paid or unpaid interns, or non-
emplovees' (hersinatter "employees™) of the Firm.

a. This palicy npplies W condiet oceurring in NALC's physical workplace; NALC
sponsored events, parties or business travel: and gatherings, ealls: lexts, emails,
and soeial media usdge by supervisors, managers and cmployees away trom the
workplace, on personal devices or duting non-work hours.

BV

Prohibited Conduct:

8. Sexual Harasvment, For the purposes of the Firm's policy. sexual harassment is
defined us unwelcome sexunl advances. requests for sexual lavors and other
verbal or physical conduct or graphic displays ot a sexual nature when (i)
submixsion to such conduct 1s mude either explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of an individuals employment. (it) submission 10 or rejection of such
conduct by an individuul is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting
such individual: or (i such conduet has the purpose or effect of unreasonably

A nonsemployes s sameone wWha b (or §s emplos ed i) o coripctor, ubcuntractor, vendar, consulipnt. or
anyatie providing seevicey i the warkplace (e, indiy [duals providing equipment repair ot cleaning szrvices)
Protectzd non-amplusees Include peosons commonly reterrsd w w Independsnt contractors, "glg” workers and
temporary warkers



N

o Discrioaation. For purposes of the Firm's policy, diserimination occurs when i
stipervisor, manager or employee 1§ treated less favorably because of their (1)
membership in o protected ¢luss (1.¢., mee, color, religion, creed. sex, national
origin, citizenship, age, disability, genetic predisposition or carrier status. marital
status. sexual orientation. uniformed service or any other charncteristies protected
by applicable law )i (i) assumed membership in o protected class regardless of
whether the supervisor. manager or employee Is 4 member of that protected clasy;
{1ii) or relationship with someone who |s o member of a protected ¢lass,

Liabikity! Harassment und disctimination are offensive, o vialation of the Firm™s policies,
und may subject NALC to liability, Supervisor, manugers and cmployees who engage i
harassing and discriminatory behavior may slso be held individually liable,

Discipline: Harassment and discrimination will not be tolerated. Any superyisor, manuger
or employee who enguges in harmssing or diseriminatory behavior, and supervisorsand
managers who allow such conduct 10 continue. will be subject ta disciplinary action, up
to-and fncluding termination,

. Retliation' No person covered by this Policy shall be subject w anadverse employment

action for reporting an incident of haressment or discrimination; providing information,
or otherwise dssisting in any investigation of @ harassment of diserimination complaint.
NALC will it tolerate such retaliation against anyone who, in good it reports or
provides information about suspected harassment or discrimination, Any NALC
supervisor, manager or employee found to have engaged in retaliation will be subjected
1o diseiplingry action, up to and including termination,

6 Reporting an lncident of Harsssment. Discrimination or Retaligtion: NALC encouriges

all supervisors, managers and employees who believe they have been subject (o, witness

or became swire of setivities violating this Poliey to inform a supervisor, manager. Ken

Ruker { Director of Human Resources at rakerdnule.ors or 202-662-2834), Nahid Sepehri
(HR Generalist Admin at sepehria nale org or 202-662-2883), or Jeannay Greene (HR
Generalist 11 at jeannay g pale.ore of 262-662-2813) Reports of hirssment,
diserimination audor retalintion may be made verbully or in writing. A Complamt Form
for submiasion of & written complainl is attached 1o this Policy.

a Individuals may slso seck reliel from the following covernmental agencies,

I Federal: Equal Emploviment Opportunity Commission: Contact the min
olfice by calling 8006694000 (T TY: 1.X00.669.68201, visit
wiwww.eeie won: by emal| ot miuideeoc pon,

i, State: Many states have civil o human rights agencies that can provide
relief from sexual harnssment, harassment and discrimination. such as;

Wi
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1. New York State Diviston of Human Rights: Contacl the main
pffice at NYS Division of Humian Rights, One Fordham Plaza,
Fourth Floor, Bronx, New York 10458, cull 718,741.8400, or visit;
www.dhr.ny.gov.

fil. City: Many local municipalities have Civil or hunmin rights agencies tha
can provide relisf from sexual harissment, harassnisnt and discrimination,
suoh as:

ew York City Commission on Human Rights: Contuct the main
office at Layw Latorcement DBurean of the NYC Commission on
Human Rights. 22 Reade Street. New York. New York 10007; call
311 or 2123067450, or visit waww. nve covhtmbechr.

iv. The Local Police Department: Contaet the local police department if the
harassment involyves violenee such s unwanted phy sical touchmg.
cocreed physical confinement or cocreed sex acts,

7. Supervisor Manuwer Reponting Obligations: All superyvisors and manugers who receive u
complaint or information about suspected harassment or discrimination; observe what
may be harnssing or diseriminatory behavior ar for any reason suspect that sexual
harassment 1y occurring, are required 1o report such conduet o Ken Raker (Director of
Human Resourees at makeranalo ore or 202-662-2854), Nahid Sepehri (HR Generalist
Admin at sepelirh @nale.ote o 203-662-2885), or Jeannay Greene (HR Generalist 1 at
peanmny e ginale org or 202-662-2813),

& In addition 1o being subject to discipline for engaging in harassing or
diseriminatory conduet themselves, supervisors and managers may be subject to
discipline for failing to report suspectad Policy violations or otherwise knowingly
allowing such behavior to continue.

b, Supervisors and managers will be subject to diseipline for engaging in any

retaliation.
8 lnvestigation of Misconduct; NALC will conduet a prompt and thorough investigation

that ensures due process for all parties, whenever mgnagement receives a complaint about
harassment or disermigiation, or otherwise knows of possible hurussment or
discrimination oecurring.

B NALC will keep the inyestigation confidential (o the extent possibie.
- flective corrective nction will be tuken whenever the alleged harassment
or discrimmation v found 1o have oscurred,
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b, All employees, ineluding mansgers and superyisors, are reguired 1o
cooperale with uny internal mvestigation of harassment or discrimination,

¢ Upon the conelusion ol the investigation, the individual reporting the
alleged misconduet und the individual(s) about whom the report was mode
will be notitied of the linal determination, and corrective action will be
implemenied when necessary.

W I the individual reporting the alleged misconduct does not agrec with the
resolution, the individual muy appedl 1o President Briun Renfroe at
renfroe @ nale.org or 202-662-2876.

Questions or concerns about this paficy-should be direcied 1o Ken Raker (Director of Human
Resources ol rukeranale org or 202-662-2854), or Brian Renfroe (President at renfroeanale o
or 202-662-2876),

- —_ S
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. sment Co int Form

If you believe that you hive been subjected to sexual harmssment, you are encouraged (o
complete this fomi and submil it to Ken Raker (Director of Human Resources at rakerd nale org
or 202<662-2834). Nahid Sepehri (LR Generalist Admin a1 sepebid dnale orp or J02-662-2885),
Jearmay Greene (HR Generalist 1 of jeannas w@nale org or 202-662-28113), or Brian Renfros
(President at renfroe @nale.ore or 202-662-2876). Either Ken Ruker. Nahid Sepehri. Jeannay
Crzene, or Brian Renfroe will complete this form and provide you with weapy iFvou are more
comfortable reporting verbally or in anotheér manner. You will not be retaliated against for filing
n complaint.

COMPLAINANT INFORMATION

Name:
Work Address. Work Phone:
Job Title: Etytail

Seleet Prefurred Commuimication Method, [ClEmail E[Plumu [Clin person

SUPERVISORY INFORMATION
Immediste Supervisor's Name:
Tithe:

Wark Phone: Work Address:

COMPLAINT INFORMATION
I Your compluint of Sextul Hamssment is made about
Nane, Iisle:
Work Address: Work Phone:

Rebationship to you; [JSupervisor [Subordinate [[JCo-Worker [ (ither

-y — SALL
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2 Please deseribe what huppened and bow it is affecting vou and your work. Please use
additions! sheets of puper i nevessary and attach any relevant documents or evidence.
3. Datets) soxual harassment oecurred!

s the sexual harassment continuing? CIYes TN

4, Please list the name and contact information of any witnesses or individuals who may have.
information relited to your compluint,

The last guestion iy ppiional, Bl mey Belp the investigation.

5. Hay the conduet reported above previously occurred? 11 ves, please state whether, when and
to whom you reported (verbal or written) the previous conddiet,

[T you have retained legal counsed und would like us 1o work with them, please provide their
contuct information,

Nignature Pty
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Achnowledgement of Receipt
NALC Policy Prohibiting Workplace Harsssment and Diserimination
and Complaint Form

By my signatire below. | acknowledge that | hive received o copy of the National Association of
Letter Carriers, AFL-ClO Policy Prohibiting Workplace Harassment and Discrimingtion and
Complaint Form, In addition, | agree to read both documents thoroughly and, should [ have
guestions. | will seek clarification from Ken Ruker (Director ol Human Resourees at
rakerenale.org or 202.662-2854). or Brinn Rentroe (P'resident ut renfroe wnute urg or 202-662-
2R76)

Date:

Name:

Stgnulure:

Please return this form to Ken Raker (Director of Human Resources st reker anale.ore),
NahidSepehri (HR Generaltst Admin ot sepelm enule org or 202-062-2885), or Jeanmay Greene
CHR Ganeralist [ ot j2annay e ¢ nale ore ar 202-662-2813),
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CONFIDENTIAL FW: Warkplace Harassment and Discrimination Policy

from Ken Raker (raxer@nalcorg)
deucaweir @att.ret
(= Friday, August 4, 2023 at 0213 PM CDT

Hi Mike; per your request, please sea the emall below which confirms Brian’s receipt of the policy and procedures.
Pizase let me know If there are any further questions: Thank you.

Ken

From: Paul Barner <Ruroc v NALC ORE>

Sent: Friday, April 15, 2021 1:07:43 PM

To: Ken Raker <ok @nsls o>

Subject: Fwd: Workplace Harassment and Discrimination Policy

From: Brian Renfroe <RENFROEMALL Ll

Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 10:04 AM

To: Paul Bamer eiar et NALL ORG>

Subject: Re: Workplace Hatassment and Discrimination Policy

Yes pizase. Thanks

From: Paul Barner <8areerALL ORGS

Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 9:59:38 AM

To: Brian Renfrae <fENT ROENIMALL RG>

Subject: Workpiace Harassment and Discrimination Policy

Hi Brian,

| have attached the final draft of the policy, It has been posted an the NALC & MBA Dayforce portal In Ceridian since
January 1, 2021. Do you want Ken Lo reach out to Stephianie and Lynda Sist to see if they need assistanca posting It
iy HBP's Dayforce portal?

Thanks,
Paul




Confidential’ Infermation Request

[rom Ken Raker (rakar@nale org)
Ueucswelr @att et

Late Friday, August 4, 2023 at D159 PM COT

Hi Mike, per request, please see the emall below which highlights President Rolanda’s directive for the policy
contact amendments. In response to your original quesnhan: yes, Brian was aware that he-was the final contact for
these matass, 25 Indicsted below, and as amended In the palicy, Please let me kiiow If there are any further
questions. Thank you.

Ken

From: Fred Rolando <ROLANDO@NALC.ORG>

Sent: Tuesday_. Aptil 20, 2021 4,21 PM

To: Brian Renfroe <RENFROE@NALL ORG=; Stephanis Stewart <sstewart@nalchbp org>; James Yates
<yates@malc.org>; Paul Barner <Barner@NALCORG> 7
Ce: Ken Raker <raker@nalc.org>; Lynda Sist' <isist@nalchbp.org>; Nahid Sepehri <Sepehri@NALC.ORG>
Subject:

All:

Regarding the emplayes contact names fof the templates of our Workplace Harassment and Discrimination Policy at
NALC & HBP, please amend the policies as follows:

HBP Item #5: .10 inform a supervisor, manager, Lynda Sist, ot Ken Raker.
NALC Item #5: ...to Inferm a supervisor, manager; Ken Raker, or Nahid Sepehr)

HEP Item #7: . report such conduct to Lynda Sist or Ken Raker.
NALC Item #7: __report such conduct ta Ken Raker or Nahid Sepehri,

NALC & HBP ltem #8d: .. may appeal to Brian Renfroe,
Pizase Include the job titlas and contactinfarmation for each
Piéase note: The person roceiving the written or oral report af an incident must immediately contact EVP Brian

Renfroe, who will then meet with the relevant Dfficers to arrange for 8 promptand thorough Investigation while
ensuring confidentality and consistent comphiance with the Policy,




CHARGE 4:
Behavior to female member unbecoming of our National President,

On March 14, President Renfroe and Chief of Staff Keller travelled to Biloxi,
MS for Region 8's Rap Session. President Renfroe was scheduled to speak the next
day. Later that evening, Brian decided to go to the bar at the Golden Nugget Casino
where the Rap Session was being held. Kori Blalock Keller did not go to the bar;
and Brent Fjerestad, who was also there for a legislative presentation, went to the
bar for 2 short periad of time. Actually, there were a number of bars in the casino.
The one where NALC members were gathering was not on the casino floor, so it
was a little more private:

President Renfroe is from Region 8. He knew a number of the people in the
bar, Brian Buttrey saw President Renfroe enter the bar and mingle around with
different people. As a member of Region 8, Buttrey had seen Brian before but had
never spoken with him. He had the opportunity to do so with a group of people. His
impression was that he seemed nice, Everyone was drinking and having & good time.
It was a Tuesday night, and the bar was not very loud. The time was somewhere
between 11:30 PM and midnight.

Suzy Miller is the president of Branch 6194 in Moulton, AL, It 15 a small
branch with only four members. She had never met President Renfroe before he
approached her in that bar. She was speaking with Hani Safie, the
Secretary/Treasurer of Branch 1314, Decatur. AL. Suzy's son is a member of that
branch. She had her hand on Hani’s shoulder and was talking him up as an excellent
representative of letter carriers. Suzy stated that Brian removed her hand from his
shoulder, told her he did not care about him and wanted to talk to her. Hani confirmed
her version of events. Bron Kenyatta, a new steward from Branch 1314, was a
witness to Brian’s disrespectful treatment of Hanl. President Renfroe then led Suzy
over 1o a table and sat down on a couch across from her. She said he was arrogant
and aggressive toward her. Bron Kenyatta, a new steward from Branch 1314 who
was standing near Hani, described Brian's behavior in a similar fashion. He also
noticed that Suzy seemed upset. He did not think it was appropriate for a National
President (o be behaving in that manner,

President Renfroe’s description of his conversation with Suzy does not exactly
match up with Suzy's. They both agreed that he was being very aggressive toward
her, Her statement regarding the incident, which is included in the file, and her
statement to me differ from his in terms of what was said and how it was said. He
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said they had a normal conversation until she “began a baseless attack on the NALC
as a union.” He said she works in a one-person office, so he recommended that she
merge with Decatur, AL. President Renfroe further noted that he: “could not figure
out why she was even at & training from a branch with no money and holding such
disdain for the union.” He claims she told him: “it was based on what she perceived
as a lack of representation...for a family member in an EEO proceeding.” His
statement continues with “She then told me her only loyalty was to Corey Walton.”
(All these statements are from page 16 of President Renfroe's rebuttal to the
charzes.) After telling him what branch she was from, she asserts: “I declined the
merger and explained my reasons. Renfroe then proceeded o pressure me and told
me | wasn't being loyal to NALC, | explained I was very loyal to the NALC, even
after they had failed to properly represent my son that was in the branch, he was
expecting me to merge into, | explained how I had reached out to Corey Walton when
I was helping my son with his EEO after the union said he had no grievance and due
to the help we received, was loyal to Corey because he was so helpful.™ (See
Attachment: Excerpt from Suzy Miller's statement) Suzy met Corey four to five
years ago. He had helped her before with grievance issues, not just with the EEO. It
was at that point, Suzy said, that President Renfroe said to her, “So you are Corey's
bitch now.” Suzy became very uncomfortable with the aggression in his voice: She
thought that phrase was used because he might have been agitated about her bragging
on Corey.

Neither Hani nor Bron heard the conversation between Suzy and President
Renfroe. They hoth heard and saw Brian Buttrey suddenly yelling, cursing, pointing
his finger at President Renfroe and saying he was going to “whip his ass.” Bron said
Brian was standing not too far away from President Renfroe and Suzy, He was
visibly upset, A physical confrontation was avoided when people came over to check
on Mr, Buttrey. Corey Walton stepped in frant of him, moved him back and tried to
calm him down. Brian told him he was getting madder by the minute, NBA Steve
Lassan came over to them to see what was wrong. Corey said he was going 10 take
Brian Buttrey upstairs to his room. Contrary to President Renfroe’s assumption
regarding Suzy and Corey, Corey Walton and Brian Buttrey had traveled together to
the Rap Session and were sharing a room. Since Buttrey is a retiree with time on his
hands, he and Corey would sometimes travel together to trainings and arbitrations
where Brian would TA for him. When they reached the room, Brian told Corey what
he heard President Renfroe say to Suzy. Soon after, Suzy came up to make sure Brian
was alright. (See Attachment: Brian Buttrey's Statement)




Suzy und Brian Buttrey met a few years ago and became friends. When one
of her sons was murdered, he traveled to the funeral. They both came across as
credible witnesses. There are diftering accounts about how far away Brian Buttrey
was trom Suzy and President Renfroe, and who intervened to get him under control.
Mr. Buttrey says he was five feet away. Corey Walton agrees with that statement.
Bron Kenyatta also says he was fairly close. Others, including NBA Steve Lassan,
say that he was closer to fifteen or twenty feet nway. In any case, itappears clear that
Brian Buttrey was close enough to hear what President Renfroe said to Suzy. It seems
highly unlikely that he would suddenly start pointing at President Renfroe and
screaming about how he was going to “whip his ass” for what he said 1o Suzy.
without that kind of provocation.

Suzy did not attend the moming session on March 15, She said she felt
uncomfortable with President Renfroe, and still kind of in shock about the “bitch”
reference, | asked her how her branch could afford to send her to the Rap Session.
and she indicated that she paid her own way because she wanted to learn as much as
she could to better represent the members in ler branch. | also asked her if she felt
disdain for the union, She responded that she did not feel that way. She had been
upset about her son's situation and was simply trying to help him by enlisting
Corey's assistance with that issue. She is actually good friends with the branch
officers in Decatur, AL, particularly with the incoming president, Diana Hughes.
They shared a room at the Golden Nugget. As noted previously, her son is a member
of that branch (1314). She simply prefers to be part of her smaller branch, and the
officers of Branch 1314 are respectful of her decision,

| have enclosed Suzy Miller's statement and Brian Buttrey's statement
regarding the events of March 14 in the bar.
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To whom it may concern,

On Sunday March 12, 2023 | went to Biloxi Mississippl, a5 a guest, with my good triend Corey Waltan to
our annual Regianal Training. On Tuesday rught, the last night we were there, numerous people
congregated 1o the bar ares. At approximately 11-30 M | was SEting on a touch at the bar and Suzie
Miller and NALC President Brian Renfroe were sitting two tables down 1o my tight | could haar Brian ask
Suzie if sha was going to merge with another branch and she stated that she was not. Brign asked her
something to the sffect of why was she not loyal to the union. She stated that the only person she way
toyal too was Corey Walton. At that time, | heard Brian Renfroe ask Suzie Miller if she was Carey's bitch,
Suzie called me down 1o their table Suzie and | are good friends and Fve known her for severat years: |
went to the funeral of her son, who was murderad, and have taiked with her on and off for years. When |
0t to their table, | was aiready Incensad from hearing Brian Renfroe call my friend 3 bitch. Words were

exchanged between myself and Mr. Renfroeand | toid him I'd best his fucking ass if he ever said anything
like that again.

At this ime several people cama snd got In betwesn me and Mr fenfroe. It was Business agent Steve
Lassan and saveral others from the business agent’s office who intarvened, | continued to yell out that id
beat that mother fucker’s ass right here in this bar it he ever spoke to my friend like that again, At this
tims Carey, who was talking with Lew Drags. came over and grabibed me and asked what happened |
pointed at Mr. Renfroe and said that mother fucker is two seconds from getting his ass whipped for what
he said 10 Suzie. Corey took me back to my room and Suzie came and checked on me later. | told her she
should have siappad that sonof a bitch right in the face whan he sald that.

If you have any questions for me concerning my statement, pizase feel free to @l me anytime. I'm s
retired Cty Letter Carrier so I'm avaliable 24/7,

Thank you,
Brian Auttrey
6154856475







CHARGE 6: Conduct shameful and inexcusable.

This charge involves President Renfroe clicking “like"” on a social media post
which included a reference to the Ku Klux Klan, President Renfroe provided me
with a more legible image of this post. He explained that it was generated because
of trash talk about a super regional round of the NCAA Baseball Tournament which
pitted the University of Tennessee against the University of Southern Mississippi on
June 10-12. Tennessee was upset that the game was going to be played at Southern
Mississippi. So, a Tennessee fan with a Twitter profile of RK-D2 posted “I know it
must be tough to get a decent job in Mississippi. The klan and bad drinking water
and all." Brian's friend, whose Twitter profile is The Rally Bike, posted that the KKK
was actually founded in Tennessee. President Renfroe said he “'liked’ the tweet
because of the irony and pointing out the idiocy of this Tennessee fan.” (Page 19 of
President Renfroe’s rebuttal to the charges.)

| provided this explanation to Director of City Delivery Chris Jackson. Chris
became very emotional as he spoke about the KKK and his personal recollections of
it and the history relayed to him by his parents. They grew up in Memphis. TN.,
which is about thirteen miles from the border with Mississippi. They told him about
blacks hanging from trees and lampposts just across the state line in Mississippi, for
everyone 1o see. Sometimes, there would just be shoes hanging there, with signs
saying the person who owned them had been hanged. His father told him how he
had to flee Memphis when white residents there told him if he didn't, he would be
hanged. That's how the family ended up in California, where Chris and his brother
were born. These images and this history are very powerful. To see the Nationa
President involved in “liking” anything associated with the Ku Klux Klan was a
shock and impacted him on a deeply emotional level. Just talking to me about it, he
was filled with a feeling of abhorrence that was so raw he had to leave the room to
compose himselt. | confess | was deeply moved by his pain and the history that was
passed down to him by his parents.

The more | thought about it, the more | recognized that this charge has merit,
| reread President Renfroe’s rebuttal of this particular charge. On page 18, he stated:
“This charge demonstrates a total absence of knowledge or understanding of social
media.” | wonder how many of our members know little or nothing about Twirter.
Even those members who use Twitter may not understand the nuance of this
interaction as explained by President Renfroe. How many members from very
differemt backgrounds, who might be exposed to this Twitter thread in some way.




would be equally shocked to find their National President “liking” a post mentioning
the Ku Klux Klan? We simply don't know how many others might be engaged in
what he described as “an absurd reading of social media from a place of complete
ignorance.” (Page 19 of President Rentroe’s rebuttal to the charges.)

A leader must be aware of the impact that his actions may have on all the
members; and, in this case, on those members whose heritage is different from his
own. Too many white supremacist groups and other racist individuals are now
promoting the same kind of hate and calling for the same Kind of violence that the
Klan has advocated since its inception. Many of our members have oral and written
histories handed down from parents. grandparents and greal grandparents who
experienced these atrocities firsthand. And many of those members are experiencing
the same Kinds of bigotry and injustice in their own lives today. A leader must be
conscious, mindful and respectful of how their actions can impact all their members,
as well as what actions could be misconstrued, especially with a membership as
diverse as ours, and act accordingly.

Finally, regardless of what President Reniroe or anyone else thinks of this
particular charge, each charge must be weighed and decided on its own merits.

(See Attachments): | have included copies of the Twitter exchange associated
with this charge. One is the original screen shot, and the other is an enhanced version
provided by President Renfroe.













NA&LC Execurive Council mambers,

This is written in response to charges dated July 11, 2023 and enotled “Re: Charges against NALC
President Brian L, Renfroe” Inihated by Directar of City Dselivery Christopher Jackson (herein
referred 10 as chaging officer) agalnst me.

lhe charges as submitted by the charging officer are tull of falsehoods and misleading
statements. Tha few factuzl statements lack cantext, and (n any case, do not come tlose ta
substantiating the two criteria for chamges explicitly stated in Articie 10 of the NALC Constitution
= neglect of duty orvigistion of the NALC Constitution.

The respective submizsion that follows wll| address each chargs separataly with the facts and
appropriate contaxt that will clearly demonstrars these charges are not substantial, and the
charging officer is:campletely disconnected from the work of the union with no knowledga of the
processas used i important functions of the union such as collective bargainmg

Charging Document 1

Bolded, italicized language is quactad from the charges

Charge 1. Neglect of Duty: On or about April 20, 2023, President Renfroe took a leave of
absence fram the NALC during contract negotiations which commenced an February 22,
2023, for an agreement which expires on midnight May 20, 2023,

During the period of the weeks preceding the opening session, President Renfroe was
missing and hiz whereabouts were unknown, According to the testimony of NALC Officers,
President Renfroe only sttended one other bargaining session, Prasident Renfroe’s
continual absence and no shows during a crotical time of negotiztions-has adversely
impacted the Union's abllity to effectively reprasent the NALL's objectives during contract
negonzLons,

In addition, President Renfroe’s departure left the bargaining team with no notes or
evidence of advance preparations for negotiations. This placed the replacement
negotiating team at & disadvantage of hiaving to start from scratch midwsy through
negonaing period.

Article 9 of the National Constitution defines the duties of the officers, including the
President. Section (e} specifically appies to the NALC Fresident's rasponsibility for carrying
out the Collective Bargaining Duties of the Union President Rénfroe took leave without
notice and without making any appointments to raplace him during contract negatiations.
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This led to a lack of co-ordination and caused deizys in making important decisions, and
fora time, caused a lack of direction.

Having 3-personal crisls is part of life and how one deals with crisis defines & true leader
There Is no Indication that Prasident Renfroe was in immediate peril, completely
incapacitated, or confined to a hospitable. He is receiving out-patient treatment for @
condition that did not render him urable te complete the minimal duties needed to ensure
ongoing collective bargaining obligations. Instead, he disappeared without any
notification of where he was, how long he would be gone, and further failed to make
appointments of those who could step up to protect the best interests of the membership
during contract negotiations, As such, Renfroe has clearly falled to perform his duties as
Prasidént during contract negotiations, a period where the membership would be the
most egregiously iarmed by his absence. Consequently, Renfrog has not demaonstrated
the abllity and/or desire to serve as NALC President and should be removed from office by
the NALC Executive Council.

Beanning April 17, 2023, | used sick leave to receive treatment for alcoholism, delinum tremens,
dizbetic katoacidos:s, neurogathy, thiamin deficiency {causing Immobility), cyclas of severe
hypoglycemia and hyparglycemiz, and a faw othar miner conditons, These (ssues began seriously
Impacting me around March 20 and my hzalth regrassed very quickly over the following few
weaks,

Uparnmy returm, | communicated the masons for my absénce In 3 very honest, open and
forthcoming manner to the executive council in an executive session meeting on June 29, 2073 at
NALC HO. Thera was a virtual option for the mesating. The charging officar did not attend the
referancad exscutive councll mesting, but did emall an electronic copy of documents very similar
te the July 11, 2023 charges at approximately .30 am. on lune 29, 2023 — ahout 30 minutes
after the exacutive councll mesting bagan.

The opening session of collective bargaining took place on February 22,2023 1 was not missing
I the weeks prior. This s false: A dally:summary of my:activites from January 3, 2023 1o the
rollective bargzining opening sassion on February 22, 2023 follows. Please nata these-areall In
addition to daily duties such as varlous approvals, assigning correspondancs, emails, phone calls,
gir

Tussday 1/3/23 - prepared for axecutive councll meeting, warked on draft MOUS for S&0CS

Wednesday 1/4/23 - Met with USPS on S&DC MOU drafrs, cail with fawyers at Cohern \Weiss and
Simon, m=t with Chief of StsT1 Keri Riglogk Keller
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Thursday 1/5/23 - Warksd on correspondance, hasted 3 lunch with USPS fabor relations staff in
preparation for colisstive bargalning, finallzed MOUs for S&DCs

Friday 1/6/23— Met with USPS on LiteBlue and Postalease security, held 3 resident officer
mesting

Saturday 1/7/23 —Worked an February 2023 Postai Record, met with Jim Willizms and Jim
Korolowicz regarding Leadership Academy

Sunday 1/8/23 - Spoke ta riew ciass 3t NALL Leadership Academy

Monday 1/3/23 —Traveled to Atlantic City, NJ and spoke to sitendsas at Branch 38 training in
Atlantic City, NJ

Tussday 1/10/23 — traveled back to Washington, DC, lunch with marketmg professional to discuss
NALC needs in community servica, met with potental PRC nominee Darryl Andersan, attended a
reception and dinner to speak with Former Speaker of the House Rep, Nancy Pelos| snd House
Democratic Leader Rep, Hakeem Jeffrigs, and sat next to House Demacranic Whip Rep. Katherine
Clark

Wednesday 1/11/23 — Prepared collective bargaining topics, reviewed economic factors,
resaiytions, stc.

Thursday 1/12/23 —"Ask the prasident” class at NALL Lead=rship Acadamy, hosted dinnzr &t
Leadership Academy

Friday 1/13/23 — Interyewed by réporter with Clarion Ledger, prepared for upcoming exscutive
councll meeting

Saturday 1/14/23 —traveled 10 Zanesville, OH and attanded retirameant party for retinng FAA and
close friend John Caollins

Sunday 1/15/23— traveled back to Washington, 0OC

Mondsy 1/16/23 - preparad for Eolle'cﬁve'bargammg by reviewing pravious rounds of
negatiations and mtemal committass, internal staff meating

Tuesday 1/17/23 - Fingerprints at DC Metropalitan PD tar MBA, traveled to Philadelphia, P4 and
installed Branch 157 officars

Wadnasday 1/18/23 - traveled back ta Washington, D, (fitemna| collective bargaining mesting,
Internal staff meeting, czll with Executive Coach Julie Couret

Thutsday 1/18/23 — made travel plans, finished February Postal Recard sditing, finallzesd
exscutive council mesting agenda
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Friday 1/20/23 — March 2023 Postal Record planning mesting, travel ta Hattiesburg, M5
Saturday 1/21/23 - install Branch 938 officers
Sunday 1/22/23— travel from Jackson, MS to Atlanta, GA

Monday 1/23/23 — prepare for executive council mesting, visit NALZ owned bullding in Marietta,
GA

Tuesday 1/24/23 — Thursday 1/26/23 — exacutive councll meenng

Friday 1/25/33— Met with USPS on implementation Postal Service Refarm Act, met with House
Commitree on Dversight and Reform Ranking member Rep. Jamie Raekin

Saturday 1/28/23 - Collective bargaining prep, reviewed interest arbitration from 2020

Sundav 1/29/23 - traveled to Las Angeles, CA for branch officer training, toured facilities and
reviewed frsining

Manday 1/30/23 — addressed attendess at branch officer training, traveled back to Washington,
De

Tuesday 1/31/23 — mat with $enate Homelznd Security and Government Affairs Commi|tiee
Chalrmen Sen. Gary Peters, met with Sen, Clndy Hyde-Smith, met with APWU Prasident Mark
Dimonastein

Wednesday 2/1/23 — Internal meeting on Interest arbitration preparation, preparad for internal
colloctive bargaining cammittees, set up structure for committes work and meeting with LUSPS

Thursday 2/2/23 - met with AFL-CIO Prasident Liz Schuler, attendsd Women In Logistics &
Delivery Sarvices (WILDS) lunch whera USPS Inspector General Tammy Whitcomb Hull was
honorad, met with Senate Majority Leader Sen. Charles Schumer, met with Natlonal Vote ai
Homa Institute attormey Mike Pieifer

Friday 2/3/23 — Traveled ta Philadelphiz, PA for Demecratic National Committee (BNC) mesting,
atended event with President Joe Bideén and Vice Prasident Xamala Harris

Saturday 2/4/23 — attended DNC mesting where | was elected s membar of the DNC, traveled
back to'Washington, DC
Sunday 2/5/23—Continued colizctive bargaining preparation

Monday 2/6/23 - mat with BPMG Doug Tuling on collective bargaining, USPS Board of Governors
gandidates, and partnership with the White House on issues like further electrification of
vehiclesand implementation of the PRC's-Sega! study, met with USPS VP Labor Relations Tom
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Blum, met with House Committee on Oversight and Reform Chalrman Rep. Jamie Comer, met
with LPOs, met virtually with Branch 137 stawards to updats them and answer questions

Tuasday 2/7/23 — Attended AFL.CI0 executive council meeting In Washington, [IC where | was
seated as a member of the councl

Wednesday 2/8/23- Attended AFL-CIO execufive touncll meeting In Washingtan, DC

Thursday 2/8/23 —met on NALC Annuity Trust Fund, met with House majority Leader Rep, Steve
Scalise, lunch with NALC suditor David Datsey and CWS attorney lani Rachalson to discise
financlal Issuss, attendad NALC employes Cortenia Smith’s wanderful performance as Harrigt
Tubman to honor Black History Month, met with PRC Cammussioner Ashlay Palling

friday 2/10/23 - Joined a sm3|l deiegation of union presicents to meet with newly electad
President of Brazil and laber Izader Lula de Silva, internal maeting planning collective bargaining
DPENINE SESHINN

Saturday 2/11/23 — Continued collective bargaining preparation, worked on opening statemant
Sunday 2/12/23— Finished collecrive bargaiming opening statement
Menday 2/13/23 ~ met with Executive coach Julle Couret, mtarnal staff meetings

Tuesday 2/14/23 — met With attorneys concerming Supreme Court case Graff ve, Delay, met with
all officers and staff involved in collective bargaining to exglain the progess —both Internal
preparation and meeting with LUSPS

Wednesday 2/15/23 — met with Senate Majority Whip Sen, Richard Durbin

Thursday 2/16/23 — Coliective bargaining preparation, internal staff meatings

Fridsy 2/17/23— Edited March Postal Record

Saturday 2/18/23 —Took most of the day off, reviewed collective bargaining cpening
Sunday 2/19/33— Continuad collectiva bargzining preparation

Monday 2/20/23 - Addressad the Region 10 Rap $&ssion virtuzlly

Tuesday 2/21/23 — met with AFL.CIO Sscratary-Treasurer Fred Redmond, April Postal Record
planning meeting

Wedneasday 2/22/23 — Executive council meating, collective bargaining opening

Page 5




| attendad the USPS financial presentation on April 10, | am Intimately familiar with the roles of
everyone involved in the collective bargaining process. The only other cfficial session the NALL
Prasident trad|tionally attends Is the USPS Operations presentation, which was on April 19:after |
was out on sick lzave: All other conversations are off the record with USPS exscutives.

As avidenced by my activites above, | prepared the union for collechive bargaining and set Up the
intarnal structure, as wall as established with LISPS how bath work rules and economic
discussions would be handled. This was communicated consistently to a|l of thase Involved

The only replacement on any negotiating team was Executive Vice President Paul Barner
replacing ma (n econemic discussions, EVP Barner and | communicated throughout the coligctive
bargaining procese prior to my absence, and throughout the majority of my absance, Upon my
returm, | resummed my role m economic discussions and oversaeing the work rules proposals; and
uttmately, agreements.

Thera was no replacement negatiating team The NALC officers and staff that | had prepared and
glven direction to.engaget in thair work and did an sutstanding job in making progress un work
rules, Some af that work s Bngaing as we continue to sesk agreemeants that will benefit NALC
members.

There was ne lack of direction, EVP Barnar was the only replacement and he was not only aware,
but vary supportive of my decision 1o seek the treatment | needed for this disease: There 15 1o
requirement for an NALC officer ta give notice of taking sick leave to treat 5 disease. EVP Barner
Infarmed the executive council of my ahserce, and as noted sarlier, | very openly explained the
reasans Upan my return to the executive councl, | also explained it to hesdquarters lettar carmier
staff and professional staff that | work with frequently, all of which have been supportive and are
excited about the direction we are going as & union In 3 varaty of areas.

| have also been open with the members of NALC. | explain the reasons for my:ahsence to avery
group | speak to. I've posted a lengthy message on social media explaining It | wrot2 ahout if In
the August Postl Record. | was under ne cbiligation to £xplain anything taanyone, as the iliness
and treatment | recelved |s caverad under medical privaty Bws. |40 it hecause jt may help
someone else. Tha charging officer has not heard me explain the reasons for my absence
bacause he did not attend the resident officer meeting where | explainad the reasans for my
absence nor the executiva council meeting on June 29

Qur Internal process for developing bargaining propesals warked wall. Dur aconomic collective
bargalning goals and priotitas are ne secrat to those that are Invialved During the ime | was on
leave dealing with my lliness, EVP Barner progréseed with-our esonamic goals-and, upon my.
return, we have continusd to move forward seam fessly,
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The atcusation that | wasn't Incapacitated 18 both false and slanderous, The charging officer has
nodea of my physical condition at the ime | took leave to seek treatment. Tha charging otficer
was an sick leave fram January 2023 until May 2023 and then chose to take about six weeks of
annusl leave until mid-tuly —during the same period of ongoing contract negatianions during
which he clalms | abandoned the membershiip.

| have battled alcohalism for several years; the vast majority of the time during which | did not
drink. Due to the haalth prablems | mentionad ezarlisr, | was physizally unable to travel and lsave
homeat timas. Neurgpathy results In numbness in the hands and feet, Diabetic ketoacidosisis 2
serious condition that occurs in those with type 1 diabetes, These physical Issues-combimed with
sddiction that accelerated repidly clearly rendered ms incapacitated to-pertorm my duties.
Therefore | dacided to step sway and zet treatment

| must point out the rony in the charging officer claiming | wasn't Incapacitatad, yet he was
unable to-artend the 2023 NALE Convarmion in Chicago for health reasons but lefi on the Friday
of the convertion on'a vacstion to Eurape.

| have explained the following to the executive councl in detall. | went to an inpatient medical
faciity for six days. Then | enterad an intensiva outpatient program (10P) whera cutpstisnt group
therapy is one portien of the treatment. | also saw mulbple doctors ffequentlv, had mulapia tests
and recelved madical treatmant for all of the issues | named parlier

| completed the |OP n 2arly June. During the timea | was in the IOF, my father was hospltalized for
almost 2 month and was In an Induced coma for nine days. | spoke with EVP Barner multiple
fimes gbout the status of contract negotiations. my ratum, and my recovery, With his
encouragement and sgreement, | decided to take some annual leave and go visit my family since
| had been unable to do so during the ime my father was hospitalized dus to receiving treatment
myself | then returned to Washingtan, DC and spent-a week preparing and meeting intetnally on
seyers| topies hefare returning to the office on June 26,

The Idea that | have not demaonstratec the desire ar capability to serve as NALC President s
ridiculous, | am healthy and excited abaul the progress we are making as 4 unian. | have
dedicated my life to working for the members of NALC znd I've nevar been more motivated than
| am now. | am grateful forall the oppontunities I've had to serve NALC members. | am pfcud of
my record of negotiating countless agreemeants with USPS both in and out of collecove
bargaining, led our legislative and political efforts that have brought landrmark legislstion alraady
with mora ta come, and approprigtely staffed the union to achizve positive results far NALC
members, We are moving forward on programs that will transform our efforts and grovide
opportunities for all NALC members to get Invalvad and further thelr Invalvement, strangthening
our unlan
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Charge 2: Circulating False or Misieading Statements about & NALC Officer: Brian Renfroe
shared and referenced confidential information about an employee matter. On or about
March 30, 2023, at Region I's Trainiing In 5an Diega, California, stories began circulating
about NALC Vice President James Henry having Inappropriate contact with female
hesdquarters'staf, Testimony from several sources assert that President Renfroe had
informed tham of alleged complaints prior to the regional training.

Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential infarmation about an employee matter.
When NALE Vice President James Henry became aware of the 1alse zllegations aftar the
Region 1 Training, he immediately attempted fo meet with President Renfroe regarding
the unfounded accusations. Brother Henry has documented his numerous unsuccessiul
efforts to meet with Renfroe who initially promised to meet with him but falled to do so,
and further falled to respond to subseguent efforts by Brother Henry to meet regarding
the false rumors spread,

Vice President Henry had no.choice but to approach Executive Vice President Paul Barner
and insist upon an Investigation, An investigation was subsequently conducted by EVP
Barner and 7 special meeting of the Executive Council was scheduled, At the meeting EVP
Bamer informed the Counoll that he had the matter fully investigated and there was no
subistance to the allegations.

Brian Renfroe shared and referenced confidential information about an employee maftes:
Article 8 of the National Constitution (Executive Council 17) requires the Executive Councll
to investigate. The Council has the responsibllity to investigate and act against any
member who circulates false or misieading statements about an Officer of this Union.
Accordingly, gny member who engages in such conduct has violated the National
Constitution. It shauld be recognized that false accusations of this nature have ruined
careers & lives, and the farm to Brother Henry caused by false rumors circulated
nationwide has already besn dene. This type of aliegation has the potential to impede any
officer’s abllity fo carry out theirassigned duties. Now it is time to do the right thing and
the only way to do that is by publicly clearing and retracting the untrue f2lsehoods
initiated and spread by Renfroe.

Furthermare, President Renfroe acting in the capacity of his office has exposed the Union
to possibie litigation and liability because of his actions. Such rash and unprincipled
behavior has disqualified him from a leadership position within the NALL Therefors,
Renfroe should be removed from office

Page 8




At the outset, | regret that | hisve been put In the position 1o bring 3ll of thisinformanion w the
executive-councll. However, due to this false alleganion against me; | am left with nc other choice.

| have not made sliegations about Vice President James Hanty. | have not initisted or spread
allegations about Vice Fresident Henry. Any'statement otherwise Is-a lie- The iea that | would do:
zomething | ke that is nensensical.

Though | was EVF at thetime, | was heavily involved in farmer President Relando’s daclsion to
appoint James Hanry as Vice Presidant, | communlcated with James and shiared hls excitamant
about his appointment. VP Henry was on my slats (n the 2022 NALC Officer Eisction,

{ver the course of seversl weeks (and how manths) in 2023, multiple headquarters staft
membars communicated cancerns and allegations to me regarding whalt they percelved a%
Inapproprizte behaviar by VP Hanry.

o Multiple headguarters staff members communicated to me that VP Henry had made
Inappropriste physical contact with them to areas of thelr body that should not be
touched, and they were sura [t was intentianal.

o Dther heatdguartars staff members communicatad to me that they had witnessed VP
Henry make Inappropriate contact with wamen at NALC HQ, mestings off site, and &t
natonal trainings. This was again communicated 1o me by yet another staff memoer as
recantly &s the week of July 24"

s Other headguarners staff members communicatad ta me that they had heard sexually
axplicit convérsations between VP Hanry and & fermale staff membzr that is his
subordinate, making them feel uncomtoriable.

I'ava ne Judgamant on what happened or didn’t happen. Thaidea that | would make this up
and sprezd |t is ndiculous: On the 6omrary, | wanted to handlz this appropniataly and 3s quietly
as possible 10 respect the privacy of everyene invalved. | had confidential conversations with a
small number of former and current members of the executive counci| seeking their advice and
counzel, as each of my predecessors has done hefore me,

The anly conversations | have had about theallegatians were with those that communicated
tham ta me. and those current and former sxecutive council members | reached out o for
sdvice: That Isall | denet know of ror do | have cantrol over, any communization from the
multiple staff members that communicated their concams to me

As |'ve previously explained, | was suffering from multipte physical issues during the tima VB
Henty asked to meet with me. | gave him a time and he couldn’t meet because he had & doctar's
appalntmznt. | regret | wasn't able to meet with him. | attempted to call him. | did not tell VP
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Hanry about the accusations for one reasen - because | expected he would do exactly what he's
doria over the |ast few months — talk about It constantly and cause further disruptions In
executive councll meetings and In the NALC headguartecs buildlhg, resulting in loss of
productivity.

| have not exposed NALT to any tegal risk. That Is false. The only potential exposura of NALL to
legal risk is if the allegations are true or the charging officer presenting clearly false actusations In
these charges about peaple other than me.
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Charging Document 2

Bolded, italicized languags is quoted from the charges.

\CHARGE 1: Abandaned Position and Dereliction/Neglect of duty. After President Renfroe’s
attendance was scheduled and announced, he falled to show at Regions 1, 11, and 14
Regional Rap Sessions where the membership In these three reglons were there walting
on him to @rive and speak. The attending Branch Officials —sant by their members' duss—
axpected to be updared by the National President on the latest (ssues affecting Letter
Carriers and report the same back to their membership,

Renfroe's no-show AWOL harmed the Union by causing & waste of time and resources.
The negative oplics of the local leaders whohad to 7l the void without advance
preparation to do so was 2 disappointment to the members present and further
generated 3 nezative impression of the NALC,

A< | explainad (n the pravious response, | was phiysically incapacitated. | atended the Reglon 7
Rap Session in Minnaapolis, MN on 3/29-30. 1 was In Intense pain, but told no one and | updated
the members and attended a retrement celebration for retired NBA Troy Fradenburg On 3/31, |
was very Il and had difficulty walking. | changad my flight to later to hopefully get a little battar
and be able ta attand. | simply cauld not go ta the Reglon 1 Rap Sesslan

The following week, | was sick-and could not attend the Region L1 Rap Sess|en, The Region 14
Rap Sesslon faok plsca the same day | went aut on sick leave and entared a mad(cal facility.

| cerminly regret not being physically able to attend these rap testions, For several years, | haye
attended dozens of regional tralnings all ovar the country and enjoy being with the members,
updating them, and answering their quesnons. As | explamed 1o the executive council, my biggest
regret aboul receiving treatment for alccholism is that | didn't do it earlier. | am healthier than |
have been |n years and excited to conminue to spesk to aur membersall aver the country,

The charging officer Includad an emall from Beanch 70 President Ricardo Guzman In the Hie
Attached s my exchange with Brother Guzman, 25 weall as screenshots of taxt messagas | sent
him explaining why | was not able to attend the Reglon 1 Rap Session {Attachment 1),
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CHARGE 2: Conduct. Impaired driving after hours In @ NALC owned vehicle. While driving a
NALC vehicle after work hours at 10:49 PM on Wednesday 09/12/2018 —according to the
attached Superior Court of the District of Columbia Criminal Division— then Executive Vice-
President Renfroe was arrested for "Driving under the Influence of 2lcohol and/or drug or
any combimation thereof” (DU)). The Superior Court narmrative as detailed in relevant part

The police heard excessive honking when Reniroe almaost hit two cyciists, An
unknown female waved down the police car and told them she believed the driver
[Renfroe} was intoxicated. The police turned around and followed Renfroe who
twice crossed double yellow iines. He was then pulled over and the police stated
Renfroa smelled of alcohal and his speech was slurred. The palice 3/so noticed him
swaying while standing and he had bloodshot eyes. Renfroe adrmitted to drinking
5t "The AllbI Bar”. When the police were talking to Renfroe he admitted that he
probebly would not pass the tests and probably should rot have driven home.
However, he refused to take the Standard Field Sobriety Tests (SF5T) stating he first
needed to consult with a lawyer. At that point, the Police Officers placed Renfroe
under arrast for driving under the influence (OUI).

Renfroe’s drinking then driving @ NALC car almost caused serious injury or possible death
to two cyclists and created z serious liability to the NALC. The NALC vehicles are provided
for business and personal use, and not intenaed to be used for drinking at bar-runs (wrong
place, wrang timel,

The charging officee has clearly 1aken the pesition of gullty unsl proven Innocent In this case;
which stands-n contrast 1o what the union dees for our members accused of misconduct. Here
are the facis

0On 8/12/18, | worked late and after leaving the office, walked back to 2 bar and grlll cslled The
Alibl te eat supper. | was thers for approximately one and a hail ta two hours. | had three or four
drinks with ginner | did not have & physical addiction tg aicohol in 2018, Alcoholism s &
progressive disease and one cannot make anassumption that the state of the dissase has always
been the sama Such an assumpnon is wildly inconsistent with medical evidence and fact

| have never been an individual that would drink and drive: On this night; | hag a faw drinks while
eating uver 4 petlod of time. To this day, | beliave |'was fine to drive and did not endangsr anyone
nor the vahiclz | was driving.

On my way hame, | turned [sft from D Streat NE anto 2™ Strest NE and came o the red light at
the Intersection of Massashuseits (greandot on Attachment 2). This is the same way | have
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driven home for ten years. As the [ight turned.graen;, twoe bleyelist came from my right side and
turned directly in front of me Just as my vehicle began to mave. | hankad the harn sxcessively as
they almost ran into the vehicle | was driving | slsoshouted at them to watch whars they wers
tiding and that they almost hit me. The vehicls had not moved more than a coupke of feet before
I hit the brakes to avold hitting them as they cut in front of me and turned to my left on
Massachuseits Ave NE toward Union Stamion,

After cafming myself for @ minute, | proczeded northbound on 2" Street NE | went through stop
signs at EStreet NE and F Street NE Between FStreet NEand G Street NBE on 2 Street NE (600
block, blue on Attachment 2) Is straetside parking on the right s you are gaing northbound.
Blcyclists also ride batween the parked carsand northbound lane, There was na traffic coming in
the other diraction so | drave over the center line = as | [and others) do avery single day when no
traffic s ancaming,

Between G 5treat NE and | Street NE (4 Street NE is.an overpass) is the 700 block of 2 Street NE
(red on Attachmiant 2), As you are galng northbound, an the right & @ curb naxt to an apartment
building and on theleftis 3 curbi next to s hospital, Neither side has'streat parking o the first
hsif of the block so it is narrow. Mid-block, the street curves 1o the laft and strest parking beging
on the right and thare sre unloading zones and parking garages on the left and right for the
various bulldings araund. A% yau entes the curve and there i no ancaming traffic, sveryane
drivesover the teénter lane to ensure 2 safe distarice from both sidesof the street where thers
are often parked carsand carsand trucks entering and exiting the garages on both sides, When
there |s oncaming traffir, cars often have to stop and allow them to pass before proceeding. |
drove through thesz blocks on §/12/18 Just as | stil do ta this day.

After | was pulled over, the officer asked me to take 3 fisld sobriety test: | refused to do-so
without |egal reprecentation | was exhausted after 3 long day, They took me to the station ang |
was asked 10 take 2 bresthalyzer and | refused to do o without |egal representation. Thay wrate
me a-gitation with zcourt date and reisased mea fow minutes later,

Initiatly, | pled notgullty. My attorney explained that BINg to trial was a one pption and that the
£25€ Was reasonably strong because thers wasn't much proof other than officer’s claims that he
smelled aleohal, My sttornay said that 1s 2lmost always recorded In an officer’s statement about
an arrast for any alleged alcohol relatzd violatian and unreliable as evidencs. He said that my
bekef that | wasn't impaired to drive was convincing

He also explained that no mattar how strong the case, thera is always risk of losing. He axplalned
the additionz| option of a diversion program where | would initially plesd gullty, then complete
activifies such a3 tralning and community service, atter which the goverament would withdraw
the charge This |5 the option nzarly avaryane chooses If 1t 1s available to them (when the
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government doesn’t have a strong case for a first alleged offender), regardless of gullt or
Innacernce.

Bacause the outcome of 3 successiul izl and the divarsion program 15 essantially the same, |
those tha diversion program bassd an the advice of my atterney, In our union world, this |5 vety
simllar o settling a discipline grisvance in & way that clears a grievant's record without runnlfg
the risk of insing In arbitration = a settlement we have all executed st tmes.

| completed the requlrements of the diversion program and withdraw my gullty plea an
12/20/2018, The case was dismissed on 12/20/2018. The arrest will be expunged from my record
this year,

To this day, | maintain that | was not impaired to drive-and that | did not endarger anyona of put
the vahicls | was driving at risk

CHARGE 3! Conduct, Misuse of Unian Funds. On Monday 03/13/2023, President Renfroe
and his Chief of Stff left the Committee of President’s Meeting (COF) in Detroft and
traveled to New Orieans, They checked Into the Ritz, & non-Union Hotel and checked out
the next day. There were no Unien events in New Orleans,

Union funds are not authorized to be used for additional entertainment excursions cutside
the line of travel to zn authorized event.

Of all the ¢harges in this document, this is the maost egregious lie. What follows |s a dally account
of 2 trip that | tock with several differamt headquarters staff members 1o address NALC membars
at three reglanal rsp sessions and the Committee of Prasidents meeting.

o Friday 3/10/23 - Traveled to Cverland Park KS with Chief of Staff Kor Blalock Keller and
Leglsiative and Communications Specialist Madeling Alvis for the Regian § Rap Session,

e Saturday 3/11/23 — Spoke to the members at the Region 5 Rap Sassion than traveiad to
Detralt, MI far the Committee of Presidants meating with Chief of Staff Kori Blaiock Keller
and Lagislative and Communications Sgecialist Madeline Alvis.

» Sundsy 3/12/33 — Spoke to the Commiftes of Presidents meeting then traveled ta Atlantic
City, NJ with Chief of Staff Kor| Blalock Keller Executive Assistant to the President oug
|spe aiso anended.
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» Monday 3/13/23 — Spoke to the members at the Reglon 12 Rap Session ther) travaled o
New Crleans, LA with Chief of Staff Karl Blalock Keller: Tha Region 8 Rap Session was in
Bilox|, MS. | was scheduled to speak there on Wednesday, 3/15/23. When traveling to'the
Missiesippl Gulf Coast, flylng inta New Drigans (s often the best sption, Kori and | were
scheduled to meat with Executive Coach Julie Couret on Tuesday 3/14/23 then travel ta
Bilox!. Julle Couret has provided tralning &t an sxecutive councll meeting and works on
protessional development with several members of the executive councl|, Korl and |
atrived at the New Orleans zirport around 9:00 pom, on 3/13/23. We walked cut of the
airport, Kari's sister Heather plcked her up, and | took a shuttie to the rental car facility,
Kori stayed the night with her mather and | stayed at the Embassy Sultes (s82 recaipt on
Attachment 3),

o Tuesday 3/14/23 — Kor| and | met with Executive Coach Julie Couret all morninig in New
Orleans (lulle lives in the New Orleans area) and then drove to Bilaxi, MS for the Region %
Rap Session, Assistant to the President for Legislative and Polmical Organizing Brent
Fjerestad also attended.

o Wednesday 3/15/23 - | spoke 1o the Region 8 Rap Session. Korl's father picked her up in
Bllaxl and | left to return the rental car and travel home

Oespite living near New Qrleans for 30 years, | have naver stayed a night at the Rirz-Carlton hotel,
There was no partying there. This charge 14 2 disgusting liz, The faise sccusation that Korl and |
checked Into the Ritzs an insult ta me, to her, and 1o her family, NALC 1 fortunata to have s
Inbbylst {and new chilet of stafl) with a stellar reputanion of intagrity on Capitol Hill and Inths
fabor movement. | am sickened [and the rest of the executive counell should be too) by the
vasaless, misagynistic lie in this charge that is | Ikely only mada because the chisf of siaff L4
woman and has beervecal sbout her belef that Vice President Hanry made intentional,
Inappropriate physical contact with her and that his behavior craates a lishility for NALC.

CHARGE 4: Conduct. Behavior to female member unbecoming of our National President.
On Tuesday 03/14/2023, President Renfroe 2nid his Chief of Staff traveled from New
Orleans to Blloxi, Mississipp) for Region 8 RAP Session. On Wednesday 03/15/2023, NALC
Member Suzy Miller’s statement indicatés she went into the bar after the last tralning
clzss-ended and was spproached by Renfroe who suggested her Branch merge with
Decatur. After she explained her reasans for denying & merger, she states Renfroe
pressured her and further toid her she was "not being loyal to the NALC " Her response
was that she was loyal to the NALC and gave further explanation inchuding the fact she'd
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regched out to Corey Walton who helped her with a grievance She states that Renfroe
then responded "Se you are Corey s bitch now". She stzted she felt "very uncomfortable
due to the aggression in the tone of his voice". She called over her friend Brian Buttrey
who heard what had been said. She stated her friend * .. threatened to whoop 8rian
Renfroe for the inappropriste accusation and disrespect he was displaying ... " NALC
Member Buttrey aiso wrote a statement and said he was " .. incensed/ram hearing 8rizn
Renfroe call my friend & bitch". Words were exchanged and Buttrey states he told Renfroe
he'd "beat his fucking ass if he ever sald anything like that again”. The altercation was
broke-up by several people stepping between the twe.

Traditionally our National Presidents are greatly respected, and they con versely treat our
rmembers with the same respect. Calling-a NALC Member Suzy Miller 2 bitch Is
unacceptable conduct —and unbecoming of the dignified behavior we expect from our
highest NALC Official.

This tharge |5 alsn Inaccurate On Tuesday, 3/14/23, there were many members of Reglon 8 10 a
bar inside the casing where the regional training was held. | talked with many mambzars there. |
was Introduced to Suzy Miller. | asked whare she was from and made normal conversation. Sha

then began a baseless attack on the NALS 352 union. She works In & one person office and her

branch s very small and nan-funcianing

I vehemently defended the NALT and asked her what branch was closest to hers. She said
Decatur, Al | teld ker she shauld cansider meeging with that branch and that would likely changs
her views on the union, | could net figurs aut why she was even at a training from a braneh with
no moneyand holding sueh 'z disdain for the union. She told me it was based on what shie
percelvad as 3 lack of representation in the past for a family member in an EEQ proceeding. |
defendzad the NALC and pushed back on her opinion and told her repeatadly thar merging was
her best aption

I gpenly admit that | sggressively defended the NALC Perhaps | even pushed too hatd She than
Loid me her only loyaity was to Corey Walton, wha | had spant ime with earlizr In the night and |
consider afriend. | assumed that meant she was there with Coray, which is none of my business
nor da | care.

| did not say to her she was Corey's hitch, That = talse.

I noticed someone yelling obscenities aver near thebarand then saw Coray walking him our of
the bar Appatently this was Mr. Buttray If he was yvalling at me, it was from a distance and |
didn’t know he was yelling at me. Thers was no altercanion for anyona 16 break up
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Earlier in the night, | noticest Mr. Buttray walking araund the bar yelling *I've bean hitting on 4
lesbian for two hours™ over and aver. This was meant In & derogatary way about s member of
Branch 462,

At no point during my conversation with Ms. Miller was Mr, Buttray anywhera near close =rough
to hear what she or | said, particularly in acrowded and foud bar on a casine filoer We were at a
tabiiz surrounding the bar in 2 crowd while he was standing near the bar in 3 crowd

Agsin, | openly admit to being aggressive in defending NALC 2nd pushing Ms. Miller to merge
with another branch, but | tid not <ay shie was Corey’s bitch. Everyone there was drinking,
including mia. | regret that Ms. Miller feals she had 4 bad expariencs with me and would be the
Tirst in ing to apologize if necessary, Howeaver, in o way do the events described in the charges
constitiite = neglect.of duty or violation of the NALC Constitunion; This charges is not substantial,

CHARGE 5: Conduct unreliable and untruthful. President Renfroe has not been
truthful/hanest to his Executive Council. Including but not limited to untruthfully blaming
the printer. £ach NALC Officer trusted Renfroe and pald a considerable amount of money
for their share of & nationwide campaign malling that was supposed o be malled out
simultaneously with the mailing of the bzllots se their litérature would arrive in member
mailbaxes along with the ballot on the same day. Instead, the mailing was not sent out for
over 2 week after the ballats were recelved by the members. Normally most members
who vote do so within 2 few days of receiving the ballots, While the entire siate was
elected, the vote spread would have been greater with tirnely receipt of the siate’s
literature that the candidates paid to be mailed along with the ballots. When questiotied
about the delzy of the mailing. Renfroe claimed it was printer error, however the printer
stated it was gue to Renfroe's lack of prompt review & approval to mall, Al printers will
not grint without final approval from a responsible designated officia!,

An obvious lack of relability was demonstrated by Renfroe which resulted in a significant
deiay of a nationwide mailing. The candidates on Renfroe’s slate relied on the strength of
the ticket to get electad and they 8/l paid a large sum of monay for the malling to arrive
along with the ballat. This shortcoming was also apparent and noted by local NALC
Orficers who liad to handle numerous phone calls from members asking names of state
candidates.

This charge |5 not relzted tganything in the NALC Constitution ar my duties 3s Presidant | 2m
uncomfortable taiking 3baut It on NALL property and NALT time, Nonethealsss, | wll| 8xpiain once

agam
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Priorto creatinga malling, | asked the printer when he neaded final approval on matarials to
have the mailing out immediately ahead of the bailots, He told mie s weak before ballots ga out
That is when hnalapproval was given. | was then informed of the delay The Issue is that the
printer did not come back to me and tall me he nesdad it zarhigr than the original timeframe fie

EaVE M

The prica for the malling quoted was roughly $80.000. Dueto the errer, the printer discountsd
this price ta abouf $54,000, Each candidats was elected and receivad money back from ther
Initia! contribution 16 the campaign

This was communicated to the entire siate as.seon as | found out and tha reasonsexplained The
only untruthful comments here ate those false allegations made by the charging officar (n the
charges,

CHARGE 6: Conduct shameful snd Inexcusable, President Renfroe Clicked “like" on & social
mediz post sugperting the Ku Klux Klzn (KKK). Our membership Is proudly diverse. and for
our President publiciy displaying “like" in support of a KKK socizl mediz site is despicable;
inexcusable. and unfitting of the behavior we expect from our highest NALC Official.

President Renfroe acting in the capacity of his office has exposed the Union to possible
fitgation and liability because of his actions, Such rash and unprincipled behavior has
disqualified him from & leadership position within the NALL. Therefors, Renfroe should bé
removed from office.

This charge demonstrates a toral absenca of knowledge or understanding of sociai media and
further demanstrates that these charges not only do not spproach being substantial as noted In
Articlz 10, but are a farce.

On June 10-12, 2023, tha Unjversity of Tennesseeand the Univarsity of Southern Missszipm
played basetsi| in the-super regional round of the NCAA Baseball tournament. This is the
basebsll equivaient of the "Sweet Sixteen” |n the NCAA Basketball tournament ar “March
Madness." | atiended the University of Southern Missigsippi and 3 still 2 supporter of the
athletic pregrams there | remain invoived with the univarsity.

The twitter profile-"Woodshadking” 15 anaccount | use 10 Interact with my friends and others
mostly about sports. K the twest ncluded in the chargas, & Tennesses fan stated “/ know it must
be tough to ger o decent jub in Mississippl The klan and bad drinking water and all *

This 1$ typlcal trash talk. Tennzssee fans wera Lpsat that the NCAA chose to allow Southern Miss
ta-hogt this super reglonal rather than Tennesses and talked trash about Mississinpl,

Page 18




Thetwitter profile "The Rally Bike" is-a friand of mine named lon Smith "The Rally Bike" Is an
actual bicyele that Is stuck In 2 pine tre in the outfield at Pete Taylor Park, the home of Southern
Miss baseball. Jan quote tweeted the Tennessas fan with & sereenshol whers hegoogled “where
was the klan fourided” and the answer was In Pulaskl, TN. He posted the scraenshot to point cut
the rony of 3 Tennessee fan trying to use the "kian” to talk trash about Mississippl while It was
actually founded in Tennassee _

| liked thetweet because of that irony and pointing aut the (diocy af this Tennessae fan. [ does
not mean | like the KKK That 15 an absurd reading of social madia from a piace of complet=
ignarance

The Idea that this like exposed tha uninn ta possibie Ingation I nonsensa. This Charge 5
nonsense and shows the executive council that once again, not only are these charges not
substantial, but they are clear evidenca of someone attempting 1o take advantage of the fact thal
| made 3 decision to treat a disease —a dacision that was (n the best interast of my health and all
the people | love, which Includes all the members of NALE, sven the charging officsr

Sincerely end fratarnally,

3 . - ;]
/ :"f o '—."3'/
' L ~ ~

7 CaF vty

w

_

Brian L Renfroe
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ATTACHMENT 1

Frami Ricade Guimnan

To: Brign Hanfios

Subject] R President REnfroe back t work?
Dats; Saturday, June 24, 2023 215114 PM
Brian,

First and foremast | am glad to hear you are doing well.

In regards to what has taken place. Including not showing up for the Region 1 Rap
Session. | am looking forward to being provided with the facts of what has taken
place.

In-solidarity,
Ricardo

On Saturday, June 24, 2023 a1 105348 AM PDT  Brian Renfroe <renfroe@nalc.org> wrote,

A letter from me has been maiiad to 8l branch and siate presidents: Youshould receive |t early next
week It will also be distributed eisctromically o the regional offices-on Monday | susoect Keisha will
distribute it electronically 25 weil | will be back in the offica Menday, June 26

| have never. and will nevar respond to despicable liss such as those being propagated by some on
‘social media,

Aftar | mest with the resident officers and-=xecutive council next week, | will be happy to disouss the
reasans for my sick leave usage. | will fall you thiat | am healthy and doing weil

Hope 2!l is well and | loak farward to sesing you s00M,

Bran

From: Ricardo Guzman <rgnalc7 @yahoo.com>

Sent: Saturday. June 24, 2023 1:33 PM

To: Brian Renfroe <RENFROE@NALC.ORG=

Ce: Paul Bamer <Bamet@NALC ORG>; James 0. Henry <Henry@NALC ORG=, Nicola Rhine
<RNINE@NALC ORG>; Mack Julion <julion@naic.org>; Christopher Jackson <JACKSON@NALL ORG=,
Manny Peralta <PERALTA@NALC GRG>) Daniel Toth <Toth@NALC.ORG>. J Yatas

<YATES@NALC ORG>: Stephanie Stewart <sstewan@nalc.org> Larry Brown <Brown@NALC ORG>:
lasmmel@nalc org: Charles Hesgs <hssge@nalc.org>, Keishs Lewis <lewis@nalc arg>, Nick Vafiades
VAFIADES@NALC ORG>: Michael Caref <caret@nalc org». Danisl P Versiuls

AVERSLUIS@NALC ORG>: David Teegarden <teegarden@nalc org>: mudd@nale.org: Cynthia Johnson
<iohnson@naic org>: Steve Lassan <L assan@NALC ORG>, Eddis Davidson <davidson@nalc arg>,




ATTACHMENT 1

Shawn Boyd <boyd@nalc org>, Mark S, Camilll <CAMILLI@NALC. ORG>: Srian Thompsan
<thompson@nalc.arg>: Vada Preston <Preston@NALC ORG>. Rishard J. DiCecca
<DiCacca@NALC ORG> Bruce Didriksen <Didriksen@NALC ORG>

Subject: President Renfroe back to work? '

Brian,

| saw the Juneteenth videa and the statement regarding Brother Gates' tragic death
on the NALC website. What | did not see was an announcement that you are back to
work. To this date we have not received a letter, or any other type of notice; to let us
know you have returnad to work

| received a lettar dated April 24, 2023, announcing that you were on a leave of
absence. As you know you work for the membearship, We deserve to be officially
notified of your return to work. We also deserve an explanation as lo why you were
on a leave of absence. In addition, NALC Region 1 deserves an explanation as to
why you were AWOL for the Region 1 Rap Session on April 1, 2023

Thera are many rumors that are very disturbing pertaining to you. Itis for this reason
we nead to know the facts. We are requesting you disseminate the information the
membership desarves 1o know,

In Unianism,
Ricardo Guzman
President, NALC Branch 70







































ATTACHMENT 3

r Name ang Address | Motel Address
Y
RENFROE. BRIAN EMBASS <5 JULIA STREET
200 L 5TNE  sUITES' NEW SRLEANS |.A 79130
AST 03 EMBASSY SUITES BY HILTON NEW
WASHINGTON, DC 20002 ORLEANS Reservalions
Www.ambseyhl/es.con o
Roam 1500INRXS) 1-800-EMBASSY
Artivad Duiis ICEEY/3)
Departunn Date 00/342y
Aduivx:mm i
Gonfirmaion &  B434JG8K Boom Rate 1522.1)
’ Mats Man LHI
Aarkiim
uath BEFENENG S UESCRIFTION AMUODEST
gaaa 2885754 QUEST RIOM $244.12
v AT RME HTATE STAMMUM RTOM TAX 1057
oy1u2) B3R07N WS ORLEAN FXRIMION-HALL TAX 72
[T E BRRTTAR RME DRLEANS ClTY 1A% §1831
ORI, BEELIHE TOURIEM ASSESENENT FEE TAX .62
DRA3E. #880750 WS BTATE ROOMRENTAL TAX $a.47
oWt I3 830 THI FTATE EXHISTTION HALL TAX £0.50
gaq A waRUIIL PAHIER O0CUFANSY FHIVILEGE TAX $0.50
oVIATD 8881970 rrelissssss gy 1530762
“ BALANCE *] $0.00
Thoee sszlirne wFAINY 7 & Taarsasy rriarmionil ieving Sl G P Py oot Gl Lesgn - ozl b0 ke o bl TecolE
e B BA COWARS TOTMN SR, LT T, BRI -;-'am' Voo mOnD  Rttan = . ey SN ey ik
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My Statement,

| did spend a great deal of soul-searching and time considering the consequences of
filing the charges.

Given the fact that two RAAs were fired by Renfroe because they ran for office, was the
first clue of his retaliatory nature. Which he did take my duties away, and also James
Henry. | weighed these facts against Renfroe’s abandonment of duties during contract
negotiations and the malicious nature of the rumars spread by President Renfroe against
Vice President James Henry. Additionally, it appeared to me that a pattern of immoral
and unethical behavior would, if unchecked, expose this Unian to a level of
unprecedented liability,

Uttimately, after much prayer and weighing my responsibilities as an afficer of this
Union, a decision was reached that | could not candone and be part of an obvious cover-
up of conduct beneath the office of a national NALC President. | conducted my own
Investigation Including online searches, had conversation with members, and a review of
Renfroe's social media sites. | found a report of an arrest and plea for driving under the
influence, It became relevant when it was discovered that Renfroe was driving a NALC
Staff car and did not report the incident. Regardless of the amount of time that has
passed, and the fact that no one on the Executive Council knew about this, it establishes
a pattern of neglect and dishonesty. This was further highlighted when Renfroe lied to
the Executive Council claiming he had never been arrested for a DU, on June 29 , before
I email the council a copy of the charges. This was his opportunity to come clean. The
fact that this charge was dropped because he completed a court ordered diversion
program doesn’t mean that he's never been arrested. In my eyes, his response
establishies a pattern of dishonesty that exists to this day.

| also took noted that he is In violation of NALC pelicy on confidential information that
should've been forward to manager of HR, and not reporting that he received a DUl In
the NALC vehicle, which is also in violation of policy.

He as the president of NALC, should never used the "B” word toward a female letter
carrier of NALC.

By him clicking the ward "like” for the KKK remarked, should've been a dislike, or strong
language that you will not be part of my social media page. The three |etter KKK stand
for hate,

| personally know how KKK affected my Father and Mother in their life.
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